
 

 

MEETING: Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: Wednesday, 2 June 2021 

TIME: 4.00 pm 

VENUE: The Civic, Barnsley - The Civic 

 
AGENDA 
 
Procedural/Administrative Items 
 
1.   Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest   

 
2.   Minutes  (Pages 3 - 10) 

 
To receive the minutes of the meeting held on the 14th April, 2021. 
 

3.   Appointment of Vice Chair   
 
To consider the appointment of a Vice Chair from amongst the Independent 
members of the Committee. 
 

Items for Discussion/Decision 
 
4.   Data Protection and information Governance Compliance - Presentation  (Pages 

11 - 16) 
 

5.   Internal Audit Interim Annual Report 2020-21  (Pages 17 - 38) 
 

6.   Internal Audit Charter 2021-24  (Pages 39 - 54) 
 

7.   Corporate Anit-Fraud Team Annual Report - 2020/21  (Pages 55 - 64) 
 

8.   Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Update  (Pages 65 - 80) 
 

9.   Annual Risk Management Report  (Pages 81 - 84) 
 

Items for Information 
 
10.   External Audit - Progress Report and Sector Update  (Pages 85 - 102) 

 
11.   Sickness Absence Annual Report 2021/21  (Pages 103 - 108) 

 
12.   Property and Assets Governance  Annual Report - Presentation  (Pages 109 - 

114) 
 

13.   Audit Committee Work Plan  (Pages 115 - 118) 
 

14.   Exclusion of the Public and Press   
 
To consider if the public and press should be excluded from this meeting during 
the consideration of the following items because of the likely disclosure of exempt 
information. 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

Items for Discussion/Decision 
 
15.   Internal Audit Plan 2021/22  (Pages 119 - 132) 

 
 Reason restricted:  

Paragraph (7) Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection 
with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 
  

16.   Corporate Anti-Fraud Plan 2021/22  (Pages 133 - 138) 
 

 Reason restricted:  
Paragraph (7) Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection 
with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.  

 
 
To: Chair and Members of Audit and Governance Committee:- 
 

Councillors Lofts (Chair), Barnard, Hunt and Richardson together with Independent 
Members Ms K Armitage, Mr S Gill, Mr P Johnson and Mr M Marks 
 
Sarah Norman, Chief Executive 
All Executive Directors 
Shokat Lal, Executive Director Core Services 
Neil Copley, Service Director Finance (Section 151 Officer) 
Rob Winter, Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Anti-Fraud 
Ian Rooth, Head of Financial Services 
Alison Salt, Corporate Governance and Assurance Manager, Internal Audit Services 
Michael Potter, Service Director Business Improvement and Communications 
 
 

 
Please contact William Ward on email governance@barnsley.gov.uk 
 
Monday, 24 May 2021 
 



 

MEETING: Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: Wednesday, 14 April 2021 

TIME: 4.00 pm 

VENUE: THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD 
VIRTUALLY 

 

 
1 

 

MINUTES 
 
Present  Councillors Lofts (Chair), Richardson, Barnard and P. Birkinshaw 

together with Independent Members - Ms K Armitage, Ms D Brown, 
Mr P Johnson and Mr M Marks 

 
 
 

44. DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON-PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest from Members in respect of items on the 
agenda. 
 

45. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 17th March, 2021 were taken as read and 
signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 
Further to minute 38 ‘Corporate Anti-Fraud Progress Report’, a written question had 
been submitted in relation to businesses identified who were ineligible for small 
business rate grants.  A written response had been provided.  All 9 businesses had 
been invoiced but not had yet repaid but processes were in place to seek the 
recovery of the outstanding amounts but the trigger/reminder point for further action 
had not yet been reached. 
 

46. INDEPENDENT EXTERNAL QUALITY ASSESSMENT FOR INTERNAL AUDIT  
 
The Service Director Finance submitted a report seeking approval to undertake an 
independent External Quality Assessment (EQA) for the Internal Audit function in 
compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 
 
The report outlined the background to the proposal which, in accordance with the 
PSIAS and further clarified by the Local Government Application Note prepared by 
CIPFA, required that external assessments of the internal audit function should be 
conducted at least once every five years.  It outlined the various options considered 
and recommended that CIPFA be appointed as Independent Consultants to 
undertake the EQA and to subsequently participate in the assessment process as 
required. 
 
The report also outlined the key aspects and EQA methodology for undertaking the 
review and indicated that the last review had been undertaken in March, 2016.  The 
CIFPA brochure for undertaking assessments was appended to the report. 
 
The EQA would commence in May 2021 with the issue of questionnaires followed by 
interviews and review of work in June.  A final report would be issued by mid July. 
 

Page 3

Item 2



 
2 

It was noted that the Chair would be one of the persons interviewed as part of the 
Assessment process and any members of the Committee wishing to submit 
comments to him to take forward as part of that process were welcome to do so. 
 
Written responses to questions asked by Members of the Committee were provided 
as follows: 
 

 The consensus appeared to be that Members were in full agreement that 
CIPFA was best placed to carry out this type of work 

 Information was provided about the cost of the EQA to the Authority 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(i)  that the report be noted; 

 
(ii)  that the approach to use CIPFA as the Independent Consultants to undertake 

the EQA and to subsequently participate in the assessment process as 
required be endorsed. 

 
47. COVID 19 - UPDATE  

 
The Executive Director Core Services introduced Carrie Abbot (Service Director 
Public Health and Regulation) and Paul Castle (Service Director Environment and 
Transport) who made a presentation giving an update of the current position with 
regard to the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
Carrie Abbott gave an update on the pandemic itself, the challenges faced as well as 
the current position and Paul Castle gave an update on the recovery and response 
arrangements and the impact on local businesses and how this was being managed. 
 
Ms Abbott presented information about the national and local position, the changes in 
testing arrangements as well as the progress of the vaccination programme and the 
local authority’s involvement in this. 
 
In terms of the National Picture: 
 

 the 7 day case rate in all age ranges had reduced to around 37 per 100,000 of 
the population and this was continuing to reduce  

 deaths and hospitalisation were also reducing aided by the continued 
vaccination programme although the number of vaccinations was likely to slow 
down a little due to supply issues and the roll out of the second vaccination 

 there were risks due to the re-opening of all schools for a longer term as well 
as the easing of restrictions which meant that transmission was likely to 
increase 

 
In relation to the International Picture other countries were now entering their third 
wave of the pandemic which was a cause for concern though some of those had 
good vaccination programmes 
 
In terms of the local picture: 
 

Page 4



 
3 

 Barnsley was seeing a slow but persistent reduction in the number of cases 
across all ages along with a reassuring reduction in hospitalisations and 
deaths 

 Excellent progress was being maintained in relation to the vaccination 
programme 

 The local population was, however, still at a higher risk compared to many 
other places due to underlying chronic diseases and smoking as well as other 
risk factors so Barnsley was still within the ‘top 10’ in terms of numbers  

 There was a need to remain cautious and stick to the national guidance 

 There had been a steep climb in the number of infections across South and 
West Yorkshire but cases had come down to a 7 day rate of 95 per 100,000 
and this was reassuring but still much higher than the national 

 There was likely to be a mirroring of the national figures with a potential rise in 
infections as a result of schools reopening and the easing of restrictions and 
there was likely to be an increase in testing as a result 

 The highest number of infections was in the 40-49 age group but it was 
anticipated that this distribution may shift again  

 The increase in testing may impact on the understanding and interpretation of 
the data but the intelligence team was to keep an eye on this  

 Hospitalisations and deaths remained low which was as anticipated but there 
was a need to avoid complacency 

 In relation to testing: 
o The position had changed rapidly and every adult in the country was 

now being encouraged to get tested twice a week and this 
complemented the suite of other measures introduced to tackle Covid 
in the borough including contact tracing, self isolation for those with 
positive test results and the hands, face, space, fresh air initiative 

o  There were a number of ways of accessing tests – the home ordering 
of tests from the website, work placed testing (onsite and off site), 
schools and colleges and local testing sites (County Way, the Dorothy 
Hyman Stadium Cudworth, the Summer Lane Car Park in Wombwell 
and the Metrodome).  In addition, the ‘collect from pharmacies’ 
approach was becoming available shortly and approximately 50 
pharmacies had agreed to participate to date 

o Those with recognised symptoms were being encouraged to get a test 

 In relation to vaccinations: 
o Significant numbers in cohorts 1-9 had now been vaccinated and work 

was ongoing to encourage the small numbers who had not taken up the 
offer to become vaccinated 

o Cohorts 10-12 were now being opened up and consideration was being 
given to how vaccination could be made more accessible and people 
encouraged to take up the vaccination offer 

 
In the ensuing discussion the following matters were highlighted: 
 

 Referring to the case rate per 100,000 of the population, it was not thought 
that information about false positivity rates was available locally, but this would 
be checked.  The false positive rate would be the same for every local 
authority area and it would not, therefore, change the comparisons of cases 
within other authority areas.  It was important, however, to look at the other 
data provided by the Government, namely hospitalisation rates, deaths and 

Page 5



 
4 

the progress of the vaccination programme.  In addition, consideration would 
be given to the variance of concern and the extent to which that might impact 
the risk assessment of the situation.  Whilst the case rate was important, there 
were, nevertheless, a number of other factors taken into account 

 There was a discussion of the disparity in the number of cases between the 
east and the west of the borough and of the action being taken to address this.  
Particular reference was made to the borough wide initiatives including, the 
use of communications, the examination of the intelligence received in relation 
to communities and groups and the vaccination take up rate.  Reference was 
also made to the work of the Area Teams, Neighbourhood Engagement 
Officers, Covid Marshalls and Public Health Teams. 

 Arising out of the above, Mr Castle briefly reported on the contingency plan for 
new variant testing as required by the DHSE.  This meant that a team would 
have to be deployed within 48 hours to test up to 10,000 people.  The idea 
behind this was that there was then an ability to be able to secure an area, 
undertake required testing and thereby prevent the further spread of the 
disease  

 
Mr Castle then gave a brief overview of the current position with regard to response 
and recovery: 
 

 Governance arrangements were still in place to deal with the pandemic 
situation both within Barnsley and South Yorkshire 

 Reference was made to the changes in lockdown arrangements that became 
effective from the 12th April, 2021 and plans were in place in relation to the 
next ‘easing’ of restrictions from the 17th May 

 In relation to Barnsley: 
o Town Centre foot fall had been very good following the easing of 

restrictions and on one day, 24,000 people had been in the Town 
Centre which was the highest since December 2019.  This was 
particularly key for the local economy 

o In terms of the visitor numbers and cultural locations, visitors had 
reached 105,000 and ‘attractions’ were very busy 

o The Transport Interchange and bus and train patronage was 
considerably reduced compared to pre covid levels but this was 
expected to change as restrictions eased further 

o Fly tipping had continued to be an issue and further work would be 
required to address this to bring the situation back to pre covid levels 

 There were a range of 42 measures that were being monitored as a part of the 
recovery and response approach and it was hoped that this would give 
members assurance that appropriate measures and plans were in place 

 The next key date would be the 17th May and the current key indicators would 
have to be kept under review so that plans could be prepared to address 
issues as and when they arose 

 In relation to the Governance arrangements, the South Yorkshire Local 
Resilience Forum was still meeting every two weeks and the Gold 
arrangements in Barnsley were still in place with meetings held weekly.  The 
Tactical Co-ordination Group meetings were continuing to discuss response 
and recovery activities 

 A recovery roadmap had been published from now until May and a link to this 
on the website would be provided.  This roadmap outlined the key activities for 

Page 6



 
5 

re-opening society and detailed events going forward.  A further ‘internal’ 
document had also been developed which detailed the activities in relation to 
recovery to the end of the year and this co-ordinated with the South Yorkshire 
version 
 

A written response to a question asked by a Member of the Committee was provided.  
It was reported that additional Covid monitoring over the last year had estimated that 
1,371 jobs were planned to be lost specifically due to Covid though final figures 
would not be available until later in the year, although on a positive note, a chart 
previously circulated detailed business start ups. 
 
Notable key companies which had closed (but not necessarily covid related) and 
included the following: 

 
o Sash – 200 jobs 
o Kostal – 170 jobs 
o Clyde Union Pumps – 98 jobs 
o Tandano – 20 jobs 
o Carlton Forrest – 10 jobs 

 
RESOLVED that the update report be noted and Carrie Abbott and Paul Castle be 
thanked for attending the meeting and for answering Members questions. 
 

48. EXTERNAL AUDIT - UPDATE REPORT  
 
Mr T De Zoysa representing Grant Thornton gave an update of the work undertaken 
by the External Auditors recently. 
 
He commented on the following: 
 

 The External Audit Plan for 2021 would be submitted to the Audit and 
Governance Committee in June 

 Since the last Committee: 
o The 2019/20 audit had been formally closed off in March.  This had 

been delayed because of a system failure at the National Audit Office 
o The External Auditors had commenced their risk assessment process 

for the 2020/21 audit and appropriate meetings had been held with the 
Finance Team and the Council’s Valuers when discussions had 
centred on the valuation of land and buildings as this was a key risk for 
the Plan 

o Within the next few weeks further meetings would be held with the 
Service Director Finance and his Finance Team to agree the next 
years Plan, the significant risks and the timings for the delivery of 
External Audit work and any additional fees required 

 
RESOLVED that the update report of the External Auditor be received. 
 

49. AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN  
 
The Committee received a report providing the indicative work plan for the period 
June 2021 to June 2022. 
 

Page 7



 
6 

The Head of Internal Audit, Anti-Fraud and Assurance commented on the work being 
undertaken particularly in respect of the Risk Register and the proposals to invite 
Executive Directors to attend future meetings to present key issues and action 
emanating from those risks within their respective departments. 
 
A schedule of items was also being prepared for the submission of reports 
particularly on the wider aspects of governance in support of the governance and 
assurance framework and, in addition, a programme of future training and awareness 
sessions was being pulled together.  Future items so far included presentations on 
the Lessons from Public Interest Reports (Croydon and Nottingham); the 
Glassworks; the arrangements of the Sheffield City Region and the interface and 
governance arrangements particularly insofar as it impacted on Barnsley; and 
Treasury Management.  Members were also encouraged to inform the Chair or the 
Head of Internal Audit, Anti-Fraud and Assurance of any items they wished to see 
included as future items for discussion. 
 
Members of the Committee were also informed that additional tentative meetings had 
been included within the timetable for June and September, this was largely due to 
the current uncertainty as to the timetable for the approval of the final accounts. 
 
Written responses to questions asked by Members of the Committee were provided 
as follows: 
 

 Additional updates on the impact and the risks associated with Covid would be 
provided throughout the year 

 An update on the Glassworks Strategic Risks would be presented at the 
meeting to be held in September 

 
RESOLVED that the core work plan for meetings of the Audit Committee be 
approved and reviewed on a regular basis. 
 

50. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 
RESOLVED that the public and press be excluded from this meeting during the 
consideration of the following item in view of the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined by Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
 

51. THE GLASSWORKS - UPDATE  
 
The Executive Director Place, Matt Gladstone, submitted a report providing a 
detailed update on the progress of the Glassworks scheme.  
 
Particular reference was made to the following: 
 

 The Governance Arrangements 

 The arrangements for the Management of Issues and Risks 

 The Construction Programme Overview 

 The overall Leasing position 

 Future Asset Management Arrangements 

Page 8



 
7 

 The current financial position with particular reference to capital costs and 
funding sources and the financial risks and associated mitigations 

 The Internal Audit Assurance and the review that was currently being 
undertaken in relation to contract and performance management 
arrangements 

 
The Committee then received a presentation from Kathy McArdle, Service Director 
Regeneration and Culture, which focussed primarily on the current and potential 
future leasing position and expressions of interest by sector/offer (food and drink, 
retail and leisure etc.), the Leasing Strategy and the discussions that were ongoing 
with various retailers/businesses and organisations. 
 
It was reported that close liaison was held with the Service Director Finance and his 
Team on the implications of any options brought forward and a further report on the 
leasing position and options was to be submitted to Cabinet shortly.  Reference was 
also made to the ongoing plans for the official opening of the centre. 
 
In the ensuing discussion, particular reference was made, amongst other things, but 
not exclusively, to the following: 
 

 The long term financial arrangements for the Glassworks, the break even 
position and the proposals to regenerate the rest of the Town Centre taking 
account of the current retail climate and the need to provide a mix of uses 

 The arrangements for encouraging occupancy, current and confirmed future 
occupancy levels, occupancy targets and timescales for such 

 The length of leases offered to tenants and the use of capital incentives 

 The business support provided from various departments/organisations 
including Enterprising Barnsley 

 The future community and voluntary sector involvement 

 The ‘entertainment’ offer and possible further developments 

 The challenge and scrutiny of the process at all stages by both Cabinet, 
Overview and Scrutiny and Senior Management Team 

 
Written responses to questions asked by Members of the Committee were provided 
in relation to the following: 
 

 The discussions and current position in relation to sewer construction and 
associated works 

 The position with regard to 
o work undertaken adjacent to the railway line 
o the construction of the bridge 
o the relocation of Barnsley traders from other retail outlets 
o the food and drink offer 

 The current position with regard to the increased cost of higher specification of 
units which were included within the financial forecast 

 The proposals and options for alternative uses of various units, although it was 
stressed that thee was still a very healthy level of interest in lease 
opportunities 

 The financial position, revised costings and the receipt of external funding 

 The use, where appropriate, of a standard assurance bond scheme in relation 
to bridge construction and the current position with regard to procurement 

Page 9



 
8 

 The contractual position with regard to an anchor tenant 

 The minor impact of delays additional costs due to Brexit largely due to the 
work from the Team and Henry Boot Construction 

 
RESOLVED that the update report be received and Matt Gladstone and Kathy 
McArdle be thanked for attending the meeting and for answering Members questions. 
 

52. MS D BROWN - INDEPENDENT MEMBER  
 
The Chair informed Members of the Committee that this would be the last meeting 
attended by Ms D Brown, Co-opted Independent Member as her term of office had 
come to an end. 
 
He, and Members of the Committee, asked to place on record their thanks to Ms 
Brown for her hard work and commitment to the Committee and to the authority 
whilst being an Independent Member.  They gave her their best wishes for the future. 
 
 
 
 ……………………………. 
 Chair 
 
 
 

Page 10



DATA PROTECTION OFFICER AND
HEAD OF SERVICE DESIGN & 

COMPLIANCE
Rob Winter and Sara Hydon 

Wednesday 2nd June 2021

P
age 11

Item
 4



Digitisation of records

General review needed by BUs

Physical records in Council 

buildings

Impact on ability to respond 

promptly to FOIs / SARs 

Audit planned in 2021/22

RECORDS MANAGEMENT

What processes have we put in 

place…?

P
age 12



Still relatively low numbers but 

need for learning

Majority of incident relate to 

‘disclosed in error’ – email and 

post

DPO assurance review in 

2021/22

INCIDENT MANAGEMENT

What processes have we put in 

place…?

P
age 13



Policy and guidance review

Link to records management

SMART WORKING

What processes have we put in 

place…?

P
age 14



Issues from Hackney / Redcar & 

Cleveland

Phishing, whaling, password 

security activities

DPO assurance review in 

progress

CYBER SECURITY

What processes have we put in 

place…?

P
age 15



DPO Assurance Reviews Planned

- Cyber security

- CCTV review

- Incident management / BU compliance

- Contracts

- Law enforcement

- DPIA review

DPO Activity 2020/21

- DPIA review and sign-off

- Incident advice and guidance

- Complex SARs

- Regular liaison with IG / CFIT

- Regular liaison with SIRO

- IG Board

- Ad hoc queries

P
age 16



1 

Report of the Head of Internal Audit, 

Anti-Fraud and Assurance 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 2nd JUNE 2021 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT INTERIM ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 

 

Executive Summary 

 
i. This report provides the Head of Internal Audit’s interim annual opinion on the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control arrangements 
based on the work of Internal Audit for 2020-21 and has been prepared in 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 
ii. Considering the overall results of Internal Audit work undertaken, together with 

management’s implementation of agreed management actions, the interim 

opinion given is reasonable (positive) assurance. This has been based upon 
an agreed programme of risk based audit coverage and input which has 
enabled a valid assurance opinion to be provided.   

     
iii. There is clearly a positive culture in the Council to explore where control and 

governance improvements can be made. It is therefore important that this 
culture remains and focussed on maintaining an appropriate, risk-based and 
effective framework of controls as we continue to respond to and recover from 
the Covid 19 pandemic and as we continue to work towards Barnsley 2030.  

 
iv. The key results from all completed audits have been reported throughout the 

year within the Internal Audit progress reports and are summarised in this 
report. 

 
v. Throughout the year the Audit and Governance Committee have been made 

aware of progress in the implementation of agreed management actions.   
 
vi. The final draft audit plan for 2021-22 is focussed on supporting management to 

consider the approach to controls in the context of the impact of Covid 19. 
 
 

Page 17

Item 5



2 

Report of the Head of Internal Audit, 

Anti-Fraud and Assurance 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 2nd JUNE 2021 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT INTERIM ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 

 

 

1.  Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This interim annual report has been prepared adopting recommended 

practice contained within the updated Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) which came into effect on the 1st April 2017.  These Standards 
require the Head of Internal Audit (HoIA) to report to the appropriate Member 
body, the Audit and Governance Committee, providing an opinion on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control based on the work undertaken by 
Internal Audit.  

 
1.2 In order to comply with these Standards the interim report provides:- 

 
i. an interim opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 

Authority’s framework of governance, risk management and control; 
ii. summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion; 
iii. details of key control issues identified which can be used to inform the 

Annual Governance Statement (AGS); and 
iv. the extent to which the work of other review or audit bodies has been 

relied upon. 
 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee:- 
 

i. considers the interim opinion provided by the Head of Internal Audit 

based on the work undertaken and completed relating to 2020-21 

regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s 

framework of governance, risk management and control; 
 

ii. notes the key issues arising from the work of Internal Audit in the 

context of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 

 

3. Introduction / Background 
 
3.1 In accordance with statutory best practice provided by the PSIAS, there is a 

requirement that the Head of Internal Audit (HoIA) prepares an annual report 
to the appropriate member body providing, amongst other things, an opinion 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control based on the audit work 
undertaken. For the Authority, the appropriate member body is the Audit and 
Governance Committee.  

 

Page 18



3 

3.2 The Accounts and Audit Regulations require all councils to publish an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) providing a narrative on the Council’s internal 
control, risk management and governance framework, the results of the 
annual review process and detailing any actions to be taken in respect of any 
identified weaknesses. The AGS will address all aspects of corporate 
governance including internal control and risk management arrangements, in 
addition to financial controls. 

 
3.3 This report provides a summary of key issues arising from the work of Internal 

Audit covered in the 2020-21 audit plan, which contributes to the overall 
assurance opinion the HoIA is able to give the Audit Committee.  

 
3.4 Although providing an important and significant contribution to the assurances 

the Audit and Governance Committee needs in its consideration of the AGS, 
this report forms only part of the assurance framework. The Committee will 
receive the draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2020-21 and the 
HoIAs final assurance report at its July meeting. The Audit Committee is 
therefore encouraged to consider this interim report in the context of broad 
controls assurance.  

 
3.5 The financial budget for the Internal Audit Team is clearly set covering the 

period 1st April to 31st March each year and a plan of the days and where they 
are planned to be delivered is prepared similarly. However, the actual delivery 
of internal audit work and the constant review and revision of coverage is on a 
more rolling basis. In order to align the annual Internal Audit report to the AGS 
and the signing of the Statement of Accounts it is more appropriate that the 
Head of Internal Audit’s opinion is provided reflecting all the work undertaken 
that relates/covers the financial year at the point of the approval of the AGS 
and Accounts. This inevitably includes work actually undertaken in the current 
financial year but that relates to the control environment in the 2020-21 
financial year. 

 

4. Head of Internal Audit’s Opinion on the Effectiveness of the Authority’s 

Internal Control Environment 
 
4.1 The Audit and Governance Committee has received Internal Audit progress 

reports throughout the audit year. In each of these reports a reasonable 
assurance opinion had been given reflecting an overall satisfactory level of 
internal controls and their application.  

 
4.2 Taking the whole year into account and the audits completed, it is appropriate 

to give an overall interim reasonable (positive) assurance opinion for the 
year.  The information supporting this opinion is provided below.   

 
4.3 The engagement of senior managers and services across the Authority has 

once again been excellent and reflects a positive culture to embrace internal 
audit and look to identify opportunities to improve the effectiveness and 
efficiency of controls and governance. However the challenges that Services 
face continue of course and to maintain positive assurance in the future that 
positive culture needs to continue also. The key issues arising from Internal 
Audit work in the year, in general terms, continue to relate to the significant 
pressures in most areas of the Council (particularly reacting to the impact of 

Page 19



4 

Covid 19), relentless demand and the drive for greater efficiency and changed 
ways of working. There is nothing new in these challenges and so the 
embedded awareness of control and governance issues should stand the 
Authority in good stead to manage the risks, concerns and issues that will 
inevitably occur.  

 
4.4 The audit work undertaken, and planned for the current year, has sought to 

support management to embrace and meet these challenges. To highlight this 
issue, a number of senior managers asked for Internal Audit input during the 
year to provide support and assurances that the control framework in certain 
areas was effective (particularly in relation to the impact of Covid 19 and the 
government funding received to support the public and local businesses). This 
Internal Audit support was requested to highlight key control, governance and 
risk issues and assist management in how best to deal with them. Of key 
importance of course is the consideration and management of the identified 
and accepted risks moving forward. 

 
4.5 It should be noted that the audit work completed has in the main identified 

weaknesses in the framework and application of controls that present risks to 
the meeting operational objectives. Any subsequent delay to then address any  
control weaknesses and agreed management actions clearly adds to this risk. 

 
4.6 Section 6 of this report provides more detail regarding the results of the audit 

work. In summary, 91% of the completed audits resulted in a substantial or 
reasonable assurance opinion compared with 62% in 2019-20 and 73% in 
2018-19.  

 
4.7 Within the Internal Audit progress reports a number of key issues were drawn 

to the Committee’s attention. These are summarised in Section 6. 
 
4.8 An update with regards to the core financial system reviews for the 2020-21 

financial year is given in paragraph 6.14. 
 
4.9 Generally, the audit work in the year has found areas where controls remain 

good and only relatively minor issues have been raised. Three “Limited” 
assurance opinions have been provided in 2020-21 compared to five in 2019-
20.  

 
4.10 Although audit work aims to cover a broad range of services, systems and 

areas of Council activity, it needs to be recognised that Internal Audit 
coverage cannot guarantee to detect all errors, systems or control 
weaknesses or indeed identify all of the opportunities for improvements in 
management arrangements that might exist. Accordingly the assurance 
opinion provided is based on reasonable coverage, as resources allow, and 
cannot be regarded as absolute assurance. Equally, there is a responsibility of 
senior managers through the annual governance statement process to 
provide assurances to the Chief Executive regarding the application and 
effectiveness of the internal control and governance framework in their 
operational or functional areas.  

 
4.11 To remind the Committee, Internal Audit assurance opinions for individual 

pieces of work and overall, are classified within a range of four options, two 

Page 20



5 

positive and two negative. The table below shows in broad terms the basis for 
the different opinions applied.  

 

 Level Control Adequacy 
Control 

Application 

POSITIVE 
 

OPINIONS 

Substantial 

Assurance 

A robust framework of controls 

exists that is likely to ensure 

that objectives will be achieved. 

Controls are applied 

continuously or with 

only minor lapses. 

Reasonable 

Assurance 

A sufficient framework of key 

controls exists that is likely to 

result in objectives being 

achieved, but the control 

framework could be stronger. 

Controls are applied 

but with some 

lapses. 

NEGATIVE 
 

OPINIONS 

Limited 

Assurance 

 A risk exists of objectives not 

being achieved due to the 

absence of key controls in the 

system. 

Significant 

breakdown in the 

application of key 

controls. 

No 

Assurance 

A significant risk exists of 

objectives not being achieved 

due to the absence of controls 

in the system. 

Fundamental 

breakdown in the 

application of all or 

most controls. 

 
4.12 Internal Audit seeks to work closely as appropriate with other auditors, most 

significantly External Audit. However, for 2020-21 no work undertaken by 
other auditors or any other review body has been specifically relied upon in 
the provision of this indicative annual overall assurance opinion. 

 

5. Summary of Internal Audit Work and Coverage 2020-21 

 
5.1 Internal Audit aim to utilise a risk-based approach to planning and delivering 

its work. This approach seeks to ensure that the key risks facing the Authority 
are covered where appropriate by Internal Audit work. The audit planning 
process and details of the 2020-21 audit plan were considered by the 
Committee at its March and July meetings.  

 
5.2 The Committee has received Internal Audit progress reports that incorporate 

the results of audit work and management’s response on a continuous basis. 
A summary of the Internal Audit reports for 2020-21 is at Appendix 1. 

  
5.3 At the beginning of the year provision is made in the allocation of audit 

resources for unplanned work, through a contingency. As requests for Audit 
work are received, or more time is required for jobs or changes in priorities are 
identified, time is allocated from this contingency. Over the last couple of 
years there has been a notable increase in the number of these adjustments 
which is indicative of the rapidly changing nature of service and Authority-wide 
priorities. The 2020-21 financial year required an extremely flexible and fluid 
plan to enable Internal Audit to provide assurance to Senior Management that 
the control framework remained effective whilst the Council reacted to the 
Covid 19 pandemic. Details of audit work which has been deferred, deleted or 
requests for specific pieces of work have been reported within the Internal 
Audit progress reports. 

Page 21



6 

 
5.4 It should also be noted that Internal Audit work is variable both in its nature 

and timing. The risk-based approach ensures the highest priority work is 
undertaken. As with all plans, the audit plan was determined at a particular 
time (March/July 2020) utilising information available and has been subject to 
significant changes during the year. The Audit Committee should be assured 
that within the finite resources available to Internal Audit, the key audit risks 
identified have either received audit attention during the year or are reflected 
in the audit plan for 2021-22. 

 
5.5 The financial year end position for core internal audit days relating to the 

2020-21 plan shows a slight over delivery of 70 days, or 106%, of the original 
provision.     

 

Position as at 31st March 2021 – Audit Days Delivered Relating to 2020-21 Plan 
 

 

Directorate 
Original 2020/21 

Plan days 

Revised 
2020/21 Plan 

days 

Actual days (% 
of revised days) 

Adults & Communities  68 42 34 (81%) 

Childrens Services 166 136 131 (96%) 

Core Services 386 468 436 (93%) 

Corporate 133 157 321 (204%) 

Council Wide 140 160 155 (97%) 

Place  167 136 97 (71%) 

Public Health 48 33 30 (91%) 

General Contingency 26 2 0 

Barnsley MBC  1,134 1,134 1,204 (106%) 

Corporate Anti-Fraud Team 600 600 528 (88%) 

Barnsley MBC Internal Audit Total 1,734 1,734 1,732 (100%) 

 

Corporate Governance & Assurance 210 210 162 (77%) 

    

HoIA role as DPO  35 35 33 (94%) 

 

External Clients 1,043 1,043 926 (89%) 

 

Total Chargeable Planned Days 3,022 3,022 2,851 (94%) 

 

NB – Core Services includes all unplanned Covid 19 related assurance work that covers 

assurance activity across all Directorates. Corporate includes days where the Team have 

supported other services (i.e. redeployment). 
 

5.6 Within the resources there remains a significant amount of time needed to 
respond to requests for providing advice, support to services, innovation and 
initiatives, changes, projects and programmes, corporate change projects and 
general work that does not result in a specific report. Approximately half of 
operational audit time is spent on work that generates a specific report. 
Details of the non-report work have been provided through the progress 
reports, but in summary have covered the following: 

Page 22



7 

 Advice, Support and Challenge to Adults and Communities during its 
review of 3 Services (Share Lives, Assisted Living and Brokerage)  

 Troubled Families claim verification 

 Grant verification 

 Charity Accounts sign-off 

 An independent review and challenge of the Council’s self assessment 
against the CIPFA Financial Management Code 

 Advice and Support in relation to the Council’s Covid 19 Recovery and 
Renewal Strategy  

 Advice, support and challenge at the Glassworks Board in respect of the 
governance, risk and control arrangements  

 General advice to services in relation to controls, risk and governance 

 Advice and support in relation to the Council’s Information Governance 
arrangements, including attendance at the Information Governance Board  

 Advice and support in relation to procurement arrangements including 
attendance at the Procurement Working Group 

 Advice and support to HR with regards to the SMART Working project 

 Advice and support to IS during the SAP Success Factors project 

 Advice and support to Core Services (BII) during the development of the 
Council Plan and Barnsley 2030 

 A check and challenge of the revised SEND governance arrangements 
including the approach to decision making 

 Advice, support and challenge during the lead up period to transfer back to 
the Council Services provided by NPS Barnsley Ltd 

 Advice, support and challenge with regards to the Elsecar Heritage 
RailwayTrust  

 Feedback to and liaison with all services 

 Audit and Governance Committee support 

 Follow-up of agreed management actions 

 Annual audit planning process 

 Input to the Annual Governance Review 

 Corporate whistleblowing input 
 
5.7 Whilst the work covered in the above list has not resulted in a specific 

assurance opinion, all work undertaken is considered in terms of the overall 
indicative annual assurance provided in this annual report. Much of this work 
has also been considered in the 2021-22 planned coverage. 

 

6. Summary of Internal Control Issues Arising from Internal Audit work in 

2020-21 
 
6.1 Internal Audit has completed 33 individual reviews of aspects of the 

Authority’s internal control framework during 2020-21 that resulted in a formal 
report. These 33 audits sought to identify, test and review various controls to 
ensure management were meeting their responsibilities to establish and 
adhere to appropriate systems of internal control. It should be noted that 14 
reviews are currently in progress. The aim is to have these concluded for 
inclusion in the final annual report to be presented to the Committee at its July 
2021 meeting. These reviews have not yet been completed due to the 
significant changes made to the plan during 2020-21 to divert Internal Audit 

Page 23



8 

resources to Covid 19 assurance priorities. Details are referenced within the 
work in progress section (appendix 3).   

 
6.2 A summary of the assurance opinions given for the 33 reports issued are 

shown below together with a comparison to 2019-20 and 2018-19. 
 

Assurance Opinion 

2020-21 2019-20 

 

2018-19 

 

No % No % No. % 

Positive 
Opinions 

Substantial  

 

1 3% 0 0% 4 27% 

Reasonable  29 88% 8 62% 7 46% 

Negative 
Opinions 

Limited 3 9% 5 38% 4 27% 

No 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 

TOTAL 33 100 13 100% 15 100% 

 

  It should be noted that clearly some audit areas have a greater significance 
and potential impact on the overall assurance opinion, i.e. limited assurance 
opinions given for control weaknesses in areas with a narrow scope, limited 
transactions and financial value will have a lower impact on the overall opinion 
compared to say a major service or a core financial system receiving such an 
opinion.  

 
6.3 Across the various completed pieces of work to date 112 implications were 

raised. These are summarised below: 
 

 No. % No. % No. % 

Category 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 

High 6 5% 6 6% 1 1% 

Medium 73 66% 64 59% 48 51% 

Low 33 29% 38 35% 46 48% 

Total 112 100% 108 100% 95 100% 

  
6.4 Of the 6 high implications: 

 2 were raised in the Youth Justice Service Report;  

 2 were raised in the Procurement Compliance reports, and; 

 2 were raised in the DPO Assurance related reports (Cybersecurity and 
Information Governance Awareness). 

 
In respect of the 6 high implications above, 4 have been implemented and 2 
have agreed implementation dates in the future.   
 
Although there has been significant pressure on management throughout the 
year and across all services, Internal Audit has continued to get good co-
operation from management across the Council and at various levels.   

 
6.5 Details of the key issues arising from these reviews have been presented to 

the Audit Committee in the Internal Audit progress reports. These findings 

Page 24



9 

have arisen across audit reviews ranging from specific establishments to 
areas of governance.  

 
6.6 In addition to the formal audit reports attracting an assurance opinion other 

reports have been issued in an advisory/consultancy context. A number of 
these reports are the product of significant Internal Audit input and over many 
months in some cases. These reports also contribute to the overall assurance 
opinion. Such input enables Internal Audit to assist management as initaitives, 
projects or reviews are progressing, thus helping establish effective controls 
and governance from the outset. The major advisory reports have covered: 

 

 Adult Social Care – Shared Lives, Assisted Living and Brokerage Services; 

 Covid19 – Income Compensation Claims. 
  
6.7 As stated in the Internal Audit progress reports it is important to note that the 

identification of control weaknesses does not necessarily indicate that any 
loss or inefficiency has actually occurred. Weaknesses indicate an increased 
potential/risk that losses or inefficiencies could occur.  

 
6.8 An important part of Internal Audit’s assessment of controls is undertaken 

through the annual reviews of the core financial systems of the Authority. This 
work is considered by External Audit who have regard to Internal Audit’s work 
to assist in their opinion on the financial systems for their audit of the 
Accounts. 

 
6.9 The core financial system reviews in relation to 2020-21 are currently in 

progress. The necessary timing of these reviews is always extremely 
challenging in coinciding with the preparation of the draft accounts. However, 
this financial year has been increasingly challenging due to the significant 
work undertaken to provide Senior Management with assurance of the 
systems and processes adopted to receive, manage and monitor the Covid 19 
government funding. It is appropriate to highlight the excellent co-operation 
once again received from Financial Services, particularly when considering 
the pressure on their resources during the reactive phase to the pandemic. A 
separate section on the core system reviews is given below. 

 
6.10 In relation to specific establishments or other minor systems, controls are 

tested at a lower level to ensure the detailed operation of systems and 
procedures, and the use of assets and resources are effective. 

 
6.11 During the year, all audit report management actions were followed-up in 

accordance with the current follow-up protocol.  As reported through the 
Internal Audit progress reports, the percentage of management actions 
implemented by the agreed dates have not given any cause for concern, 
particularly when considering that the Council was responding to the 
pandemic and this understandably being management’s priority at that time. 
Appendix 4 provides a breakdown of the current status of all agreed 
management actions in relation to the 2020-21 planned Internal Audit activity.  

 
6.12  The Committee has continued to monitor this situation. Senior management 

are aware of their responsibilities to implement agreed management actions 
to ensure any control, risk or governance weaknesses identified through 

Page 25



10 

internal audit work are corrected. The Senior Management Team receives 
regular monitoring reports regarding the implementation of agreed 
management actions and escalates action accordingly. Clearly, any significant 
delay in implementation or non-implementation weakens the overall control 
environment. 

 
6.13 In common with the general theme highlighted previously, Internal Audit has 

found that in many cases any delay in the implementation of agreed 
management actions has been as a direct consequence of the significant 
demands placed on management over the year and particularly with the 
impact of reacting to Covid 19. A follow-up exercise has recently been 
undertaken, enabling the Committee to be provided with an updated position. 

 
 Core System Reviews 2020-21 
 
6.14 Overall there are 10 systems regarded as core and fundamental to the 

financial management of the Authority.  Over the last few years there has 
been a detailed risk assessment undertaken to establish the extent of 
coverage each system requires given a number of factors, namely any 
significant changes in the system or key personnel, the audit opinion the 
previous audit and the results of an analytical review undertaken by Internal 
Audit. The outcome of this risk assessment is discussed and agreed with the 
Section 151 Officer. External Audit are also consulted on the risk assessment 
and proposed coverage. 

 
6.15 The assurance opinions given for each of them in previous years and the 

agreed level of coverage for 2020-21 are shown in the table below:-  
 

Core System 

Audit 

Coverage 

2020-21* 

Assurance 
Opinion 

2019-20 

Assurance 
Opinion 

2018-19 

Assurance 
Opinion 

2017-18 

Assurance 
Opinion 

2016-17 

Purchase to 
Pay 

No Audit** Not Audited Substantial Adequate Not Audited 

Income Walkthrough Not Audited Not Audited Adequate Not Audited 

Council Tax  Compliance Not Audited 
Substantial 

Not Audited Not Audited 

NDR Compliance Not Audited   

Housing 
Benefits 

Walkthrough Not Audited Substantial Not Audited Limited 

Pay, Employee 
Admin & Org. 
Management 

Compliance Reasonable Not Audited Adequate Not Audited 

Main 
Accounting 

Compliance Reasonable Not Audited Substantial Not Audited 

Housing Rents  Compliance*** Substantial Adequate Substantial Substantial 

Fixed Assets No Audit Reasonable No Audit No Audit No Audit 

Treasury 
Management 

Walkthrough Not Audited Not Audited Substantial Adequate 

  
 * A Walkthrough audit tests the end to end processes to provide assurance on the internal control 

framework. A Compliance audit includes sample testing of transactions in addition to the work 
undertaken in a Walkthrough.   

 

Page 26



11 

 ** A Council wide procurement compliance review has been concluded in 2020/21 (relating to 

2019/20). In addition, assurance work in relation to Covid19 emergency funding covered the Purchase 
to Pay elements. 

 
 *** Undertaken as part of the Berneslai Homes Internal Audit Plan. A Reasonable assurance has been 

provided for 2020-21. 

 
6.16 As mentioned above, work on these core system audits is in progress but 

should be completed to be included in the final annual assurance opinion.  
 

 Summary of Control Issues 
 
6.17 During the year the Committee has received Internal Audit progress reports 

that highlighted key control issues that could potentially undermine the 
provision of an overall positive assurance opinion for the year.  The major 
issues that resulted in the issue of high implications in relation to particular 
audits were:-  

 

 Procurement (BMBC and NPS Barnsley Ltd) – non-compliance with CSOs, 
policies and procedures. In addition, concerns with regards to the lack of 
declaration of interests by NPS Barnsley Ltd. The agreed management 
actions have been implemented in a timely manner during the year, where 
they remained relevant, upon the transfer of Services provided by NPS 
Barnsley Ltd back to the Council; 

 Procurement Compliance – Youth Justice Service – support and training is 
being provided to Officers to mitigate the risk of non-compliance (NB - the 
type of procurement activity in this Service is realtively low in value). 

 

6.18 It is noted that the impact of and recovery from Covid 19 and the wider 
transformation programme will continue to have implications for the structure 
and nature of the Council's control framework. Internal Audit will continue to 
support management to identify any potential implications in terms of the 
effectiveness of control and governance structures to hopefully retain positive 
assurance overall. 

 

7. Local Area Implications 
 
7.1 There are no Local Area Implications arising from this report. 
  

8. Consultations 
 
8.1 All audit reports are discussed with the main auditee. Individual audit reports 

are provided to the appropriate Executive and/or Service Director to apprise 
him/her of key issues raised and remedial actions agreed. No specific 
consultation has been necessary in the preparation of this annual report.  

 

9. Compatibility with European Convention on Human Rights 

 
9.1  In the conduct of investigations, Internal Audit operates under the provisions 

of the Data Protection Act 2018, the Human Rights Act 1998, the Regulation 
of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 and the Police and Criminal Evidence Act. 

 
 
 

Page 27



12 

10. Reduction of Crime and Disorder 
 
10.1 An inherent aspect of audit work is to prevent, detect and investigate incidents 

of fraud, theft and corruption. All pieces of audit work have fraud risks 
considered in their scope. Any control issues arising from audit investigations 
are considered to ensure improvements in overall controls. Additionally, 
Internal Audit ensures that, in specific instances, management takes 
appropriate action to minimise the risks of fraud and corruption re-occurring.   

 

11. Risk Management Considerations 
 
11.1 Whilst there are no specific risks emanating as a result of this report there are 

a range of risk issues worthy of consideration and note.  
 
11.2  The Committee has received a detailed report on the audit plan including the 

basis of the plan and the utilisation of risk information. This is a critical aspect 
of the audit function and seeks to ensure audit resources are targeted at the 
areas of the Council’s business where the most significant risks have been 
identified. 

 
11.3 There is a risk to the Authority as a whole should the Internal Audit function 

not be effective. This would undermine the internal control, risk and 
governance arrangements of the Authority and fail to provide the Committee 
with sufficient independent information upon which to base their assurance 
views upon. The provision of detailed Internal Audit progress reports during 
the year, plus this annual report and the report on the QAIP should act as 
mitigation in ensuring the Committee is in a position to constantly keep the 
audit function under review. 

 
11.4 There is a risk to the Authority should Internal Audit not be in a position to 

undertake its work independently and objectively. Throughout the year, there 
has been no impairment of independence or objectivity. 

 
11.5 There is a risk to the control and governance of the Authority if management 

fail to implement their agreed actions to address the implications identified 
during Internal audit work. In mitigation Internal Audit has introduced a more 
rigorous ‘follow-up’ process to ensure the most significant issues are 
implemented. This is reported to the Audit Committee within the quarterly and 
annual reports. 

 

12. Employee Implications 
  
12.1 There are no employee implications arising from this report. 

 

13. Financial Implications 

 
13.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. The costs 

of the Internal Audit function and the external audit fees are included within 
the Authority’s base budget. 

 

 

 

Page 28



13 

14. Appendices 
 
14.1 Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Reports 2020-21 

Appendix 2 - Details and Outcomes of other Internal Audit Activities 
 Appendix 3 - Projects and Work In Progress 
 Appendix 4 - Agreed Management Actions 
 Appendix 5 – Financial Year End Performance Indicators 2020-21 
 

15. Background Papers 

 
15.1 Various Internal and External Audit reports, files and working papers. 
 

 

Officer Contact:  Rob Winter CPFA  

  Head of Internal Audit, Anti-Fraud and Assurance 

Telephone No:  01226 773241                                                 

Date:    20th May 2021

Page 29



14 

Appendix 1 

 

Directorate Title of Audit & Date of Formal Report Assurance 

Opinion 

No. & Priority 

of Implications 

Governance / 

Risk / Control 

Governance Themes Follow-up Action 

Core Services Policy into Practice - Honoraria & 
Agency Staff  
 
19/06/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 2 
L – 1 

Control HR / Management / Workforce 
x 3 (M2, L1) 

N/A 

Core Services Procurement Compliance (BMBC) 
08/07/2020 

Limited H - 1 
M - 10 
L - 11 

Governance /  
Risk /  

Control 

Risk Management x 1 (M) 
 

Contracts / Procurement / 
Commissioning x 14 (M 6, L 8) 

 
Performance Management & 

Data Quality x 2 (M 1, L 1) 
 

Democracy x 1 (L) 
 

Legislative Compliance x 2 (M 
1, L 1) 

 
Partnership & Relationships X 

2 (H 1, M 1) 
 

3 x Medium – 
Implementation Date 
Elapsed & Revised 

Dates Provided 

Core Services Procurement Compliance (NPS 
Barnsley Ltd) 
24/06/2020 

Limited H - 1 
M - 11 
L - 5 

Governance /  
Risk /  

Control 

Contracts / Procurement / 
Commissioning x 17 (H 1, M 

10, L 6) 
 

Partnership & Relationships X 
1 (M) 

 

N/A 

Core Services Payroll (under and overpayments) 
16/07/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 1 
L – 0 

 

Control Financial Regulations x 1 (M) N/A 

Core Services Main Accounting (Journals) 
29/05/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 1 
L - 2 

Control Information Governance x 1 
(L) 

Financial Management x 2 
(M1, L1) 

 

N/A 

P
age 30



15 

Directorate Title of Audit & Date of Formal Report Assurance 

Opinion 

No. & Priority 

of Implications 

Governance / 

Risk / Control 

Governance Themes Follow-up Action 

Core Services DPO Assurance– Cybersecurity 
17/09/2020 

Reasonable H - 1 
M - 2 
L - 0 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Legislative Compliance x 1 (H) 
Information Governance x 2 

(M) 
 

N/A 

Core Services DPO Assurance – Incident Management 
18/11/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 1 
L - 0 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Information Governance x 1 
(M) 

N/A 

Childrens 
Services 

Elective Home Education 
11/11/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 2 
L - 1 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Information Governance x 1 
(M) 

Partnership & Relationships x 
1 (M) 

Performance Management & 
Data Quality x 1 (L) 

 

2 x Medium – 
Implementation Date 
Elapsed & Revised 

Date Provided. 

Childrens 
Services 

Attendance: Fixed Penalty Notices 
15/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 2 
L – 2 

 
 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Information Governance x 4 N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Emergency Funding Tracker 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 0 
L – 0 

 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

N/A N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Adults Social Care 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 3 
L – 0 

 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Financial Management x 3 (M) N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Children’s Social Care 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 1 
L – 0 

 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Financial Management x 1 (M) N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Children’s Services - Early Start & 
Family Centres 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 0 
L - 0 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

N/A N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Public Health 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 1 
L – 0 

 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Financial Management x 1 (M) N/A 

P
age 31



16 

Directorate Title of Audit & Date of Formal Report Assurance 

Opinion 

No. & Priority 

of Implications 

Governance / 

Risk / Control 

Governance Themes Follow-up Action 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Vulnerable and High Risk 
 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 2 
L - 1 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Financial Management x 1 (M) 
Contracts/ Procurement/ 
Commissioning x 1 (M) 
Business Continuity / 

Emergency Resilience x 1 (L) 

N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Other Services: Corporate 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 0 
L - 1 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Financial Management x 1 (L) N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Other Services: HR 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 1 
L - 0 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Financial Management x 1 (M) N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Other Services: 
Homelessness 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 3 
L - 0 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Contracts/ Procurement/ 
Commissioning x 2 (M) 

 
Assets x 1 (M) 

N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Other Services: IT 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 0 
L - 1 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Financial Management x 1 (L) N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Other Services: PPE 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 1 
L - 0 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Financial Management x 1 (M) N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Other Services: Place 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 1 
L - 1 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Financial Management x 2 
(M/L) 

N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Other Services: Place - Property 
Services & Culture 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 1 
L - 0 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Financial Management x 1 (M) N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Emergency Funding Plan  
Loss of Income Projections – Place 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 3 
L - 2 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Financial Management x 5  
(M 3, L 2) 

N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Moratorium Compliance SAP 
Spend 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 0 
L – 0 

Governance / 
Control 

Financial Management x 1 (M) N/A 

Core Services Covid 19 – Moratorium Compliance 
Procurement Card Spend 
05/10/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 0 
L – 0 

 

Governance / 
Control 

N/A N/A 

P
age 32



17 

Directorate Title of Audit & Date of Formal Report Assurance 

Opinion 

No. & Priority 

of Implications 

Governance / 

Risk / Control 

Governance Themes Follow-up Action 

Core Services DPO Arrangements Compliance 
04/01/2021 

Substantial H - 0 
M - 0 
L - 3 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Information Governance x 3 
(L) 

N/A 

Core Services Preventing Illegal Working 
23/11/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 5 
L – 0 

Control Information Governance x 5 
(M) 

N/A 

Core Services DPO Assurance – IG Awareness 
(Surveys) 
14/12/2020 

Reasonable H - 1 
M - 1 
L – 0 

Risk/ Control Information Governance x 2 
(H/M) 

N/A 

Public Health Quality and Governance Arrangements 
07/12/2020 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 3 
L - 1 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Health & Safety x 1 (M) 
Partnership & Relationships x 

2 (M 1, L 1) 
Performance Management & 

Data Quality x1 (M) 

1 x Medium – Not Yet 
Due 

1 x Medium – Target 
Date Elapsed & 

Revised Date Provided 

Childrens 
Services 

Take Up of Two Year Old Entitlement Reasonable H - 0 
M - 3 
L - 0 

Control Information Governance x 1 
(M) 

Partnership & Relationships x 
1 (M) 

Performance Management & 
Data Quality x1 (M) 

 

1 x Medium – 
Implementation Date 
Elapsed – Awaiting 

Management 
Response 

Core Services Covid19 – Isolation Payments 
22/02/2021 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 2 
L - 0 

Risk / Control Information Governance x 1 
(M) 

Financial Management x 1 (M) 
 

N/A 

Childrens 
Service 

Barugh Green Primary School (Interim 
Report) 
19/03/2021 

Reasonable H - 0 
M - 2 
L - 0 

Governance / 
Risk / Control 

Information Governance x 2 
(M) 

N/A 

Childrens 
Services 

Youth Justice Service 
07/04/2021 

Limited H - 2 
M - 8 
L - 1 

Risk / Control Information Governance x 1 
(H) 

Managing People x 1 (H) 
Contracts/ Procurement/ 
Commissioning x 6 (M) 

Financial Management x 3 (M 
2, L 1) 

2 X High – Not Yet 
Due 

 
8 x Medium – Not Yet 

Due 
 
 

 

P
age 33



18 

Appendix 2 
 

Details and outcome of other Internal Audit activities concluded in the period  
 

Audit Work 

Completed 

Details Contribution to Assurance 

Adults & 
Communities: 
Troubled Families – 
Quarterly validation 

Grant claim validation. The work contributes to assurance in 
respect of financial management. 

 

Adults & 
Communities: 
Adult Social Cares 
Services  

Advice, Support and Challenge to Adults 
and Communities during its review of 3 
Services (Share Lives, Assisted Living 
and Brokerage). 

The work contributes to assurance in 
respect of governance and financial 
management. 

Core/Place: 
Glassworks Board 
Attendance 

Provide independent and objective 
assurance that effective and efficient risk, 
control and governance arrangements 
exist to provide a robust framework upon 
which the phase two scheme can be 
delivered (i.e. on time, in budget & to 
standard). 

The work contributes to assurance in 
respect to contract management, 
governance and financial 
management. 

Core: 
SAP Success 
Factors 

To continue to support the project 
throughout its design and implementation.  

The work contributes to assurance in 
respect to contract management, 
governance and financial 
management. 

Core: 
SMART working and 
Managers Toolkit  

To develop the audit and assurance 
elements of the managers toolkit and also 
to attend the Working Group meetings to 
provide check and challenge to the 
process. 

This work supports the Council in its 
objective of increased SMART working 
arrangements.  

Core: 
Covid19 Income 
Compensation 
Claims 

Indpendent validation of 2 x claims 
submitted to date. 

The work contributes to assurance in 
respect of financial management. 

Core: Financial 
Management Code 

Independent check and challenge of the 
self assessment to measure compliance 
with the Code. 

The work contributes to assurance in 
respect of financial management. 

Core/Place: 
Covid19 Recovery 
and Response 
Strategy 

Advice and Support in relation to the 
Council’s Covid19 Recovery and Renewal 
Strategy. 

The work contributes to assurance in 
respect of governance and financial 
management. 

Core: 
Council Plan and 
Barnsley 2030  

Advice and Support during the drafting 
and launch of the Strategic Plans. 

The work contributes to assurance in 
respect of governance arrangements. 

Core: NPS Barnsley 
Ltd 

Advice, support and challenge during the 
lead up period to transfer back to the 
Council Services provided by NPS 
Barnsley Ltd. 

The work contributes to assurance in 
respect of governance and financial 
management. 

Childrens Services: 
SEND – Decision 
Making 

A check and challenge approach to the 
project in terms of improvement plans and 
inspection readiness.  

The work contributes to assurance in 
respect of governance and financial 
management. 

Place: Elsecar 
Heritage Trust 

Advice, support and challenge with 
regards to the Elsecar Heritage Trust. 

The work contributes to assurance in 
respect of governance and financial 
management. 

 

Page 34



19 

Appendix 3 

 

Work in Progress as at 20th May 2021 
 

 

Directorate & Audit Assignment Status / Comment 

Adults & Communities: Local Welface 
Assistance 

Testing almost completed on site  

Core: Financial Systems 

 Income 

 Main Accounting 

 Treasury Management 

 Non Domestic Rates 

 Housing Benefits 

 Payroll 

 Council Tax 
 

Testing being completed / almost completed 
on site 

Core: Moratorium Follow Up SAP Spend Draft report being prepared 

Core: Moratorium Follow Up Procurement 
Card Spend 

Draft report being prepared 

Core: Data Management Police – 
Compliance 

Draft report being prepared 

Childrens Services: Barugh Green School Interim report agreed, scheduled in on-site 
work for June now socal restrictions allow 

Place: Glassworks Themed Review 
Contract and Performance Management 

Testing being completed on site 

Place: Funding Review ESIF Testing being completed on site 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



20 

 

Appendix 4 

 

Analysis of Agreed Management Actions Relating to 2020-21 Planned Internal Audit 

Activity 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Implication 

Categorisation 

No. of 

Implications 

Not Yet Due – 

Future 

Implementation 

Date Agreed 

Completed 

Not yet 

completed –

Revised date 

agreed 

Not yet 

completed – 

Awaiting 

Management 

Update 

Adults and Communities 

High 0     

Medium 8  8   

TOTAL 8     

Place 

High 0     

Medium 5  5   

TOTAL 5     

Childrens Services (excl. Maintained Schools) 

High 2 2    

Medium 16 6 7  3 

TOTAL 18     

Maintained Schools 

High 0     

Medium 2  2   

TOTAL 2     

Core 

High 4  4   

Medium 38  35 3  

TOTAL 42     

Public Health 

High 0     

Medium 4 1 2 1  

TOTAL 4     

OVERALL TOTAL 79 9 63 4 3 

%  11 80 5 4 

Page 36



21 

 

Appendix 5 

Internal Audit Performance Indicators - Quarter Four 2020/21 
 

Ref. Indicator 
Frequency 

of Report 

Target 

2020/21 

This Period 

(Q4) 

Year to Date 

 

 

1. 
 

1.1 
 
 
 

2. 
 

2.1 
 
 
 

2.2 
 
 

2.3 
 

 

3. 
 

3.1 
 
 

4. 
 

4.1 

 
 

 

 Customer Perspective: 
 
Percentage of questionnaire received noted “good” or “very good” relating to 
work concluding with an audit report.  
  
 

Business Process Perspective: 
 
Percentage of final audit reports issued within 10 working days of completion 
and agreement of the draft audit report.   
 
 
Percentage of chargeable time against total available. 
 
 
Average number of days lost through sickness per FTE  
 
 

Continuous Improvement Perspective: 
 
Personal development plans for staff completed within the prescribed timetable.  

 

 

Financial Perspective: 
 
Total Internal Audit costs v budget.  
 

 
 
 

Quarterly 
 

 
 

 
 
Quarterly 

 
 
 

Quarterly 
 
 

Quarterly 
 
 
 
 

Annual 
 
 
 
 

Quarterly 

 
 
 

95% 
 
 
 
 
 

80% 
 
 
 

73% 
 
 

6 days 
 
 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 
 

Within 
Budget 

 

 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 

77% 
 
  

0 days 
 
 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 
 

Yes 

 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 

71% 
 
  

2.41 days 
 
 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 
 

Yes 

 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Head of Internal Audit, 

Anti-Fraud and Assurance 

 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 2nd JUNE 2021 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2021-2024 

 

 

1. Purpose of the Report 

 

1.1 This report presents to the Committee the Internal Audit Charter (attached as 

Appendix 1) for approval as required by the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS). 

 

2. Recommendation 

 

2.1 The Committee is recommended to consider and approve the Internal 

Audit Charter and consequently be assured that the Internal Audit 

function operates in accordance with the relevant standards. 

 

3. Background 

 

3.1 The first Standard in the PSIAS – 1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility, 

states that: 

 

“The internal audit charter is a formal document that defines the internal 

audit activity’s purpose, authority and responsibility. The internal audit 

charter establishes the internal audit activity’s position within the 

organisation, including the nature of the Head of Internal Audit’s functional 

reporting relationship with the Board (Audit Committee); authorises access 

to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance 

of engagement; and defines the scope of internal audit activities. Final 

approval of the internal audit charter resides with the Board.” 

 

3.2 The Charter is structured to explain the various aspects of the function, its 

Mission and Core Principles, authority and scope, purpose, definitions, 

responsibilities of Internal Audit and Senior Management, the position of 

Internal Audit within the organisation, the resources, skills, competencies and 

standards, access to people and information, the scope of activity, planning, 

reporting and quality assurance. 

 

3.3 Once approved the Charter will be presented to the Audit Committee’s of our 

other client organisations. In that context some of the language is generic to 

cover the various organisations Internal Audit serves. 

 

Page 39

Item 6



3.4 It is good practice to review the Charter periodically to ensure it reflects how 

the function operates but also to ensure that the requirements and provisions 

of the PSIAS are adequately covered. Other than relatively minor updates, the 

Charter represents how the Internal Audit operates currently and as such 

there are no significant changes to highlight. 

 

4. Appendix 

 

 Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Charter 2021 – 2024 

 

 

 

Officer Contact: Head of Internal Audit, Anti-Fraud and Assurance 

Email:    robwinter@barnsley.gov.uk 

Date:    19th May 2021 

 

Page 40

mailto:robwinter@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

BARNSLEY 
Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES 

 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

 

2021 – 2024 
 

 

 

 
Updated March 2021 

 
 

Page 41



1 
 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 The Internal Audit function is a key component of an organisation's governance framework. As 

such, it aims to provide a quality objective and independent management support function in 

order to influence and contribute to the achievement of strategic objectives. An important part of 

this support is the development and maintenance of excellent client relationships and adopting 

an innovative and flexible approach to the delivery of the service. This Charter provides the 

framework for the management and delivery of the Internal Audit function and is applicable to all 

client organisations. 

 

1.2 This Charter therefore defines the mission and core principles for Internal Audit, its authority and 

scope, purpose, responsibilities, position in the organisation, resources and standards, planning 

and reporting. This is consistent with and in compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS). 

 

1.3 The PSIAS defines internal audit as: 

 

“…. an independent, objective assurance and consulting function designed to add 

value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish 

its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve 

the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.”. 

 

2. Mission and Core Principles 

 

2.1 The PSIAS also provides a mission for the Internal Audit function that articulates what it aspires 

to accomplish within the Council and for its external client organisations.  

 

2.2 The mission for Internal Audit is: 

 

“To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective 

assurance, advice and insight”. 

 

2.3 A set of core principles have also been defined through the PSIAS aimed at articulating internal 

audit effectiveness. The function aims to demonstrate these principles in all it does and across 

all the organisations it serves. The core principles and how they are met are: - 

 

Principle How Discharged 

Demonstrates integrity All IA staff are obliged to adhere to the Code of Ethics within the PSIAS (see 
para 8.8) and confirm annually that they have read, understood and will 
comply. 

Demonstrates 
competence and due 
professional care 

IA have a performance management process of specific job supervision and 
management complimented by regular 1:1s and the corporate PDR 
process. Feedback from clients and peers on each piece of work is also 
utilised for this purpose. 

IA staff undertake regular specific and general training and development 
activities in accordance with the agreed training plan. (See para 8.9) 

Is objective, free from 
undue influence and 
therefore demonstrates 
independent thought 

As individuals, the ability to operate objectively and with an independent 
mind is a core attribute of being in IA and a requirement within PSIAS (see 
paras 8.5 and 8.6). 

The HoIA’s position within the organisation also sets this tone and is further 
reinforced by the specific access to information and other officers afforded 
to IA. 

Aligns with the 
strategies, objectives 
and risks of the 
organisation 

IA planning and delivery is built upon the knowledge of the organisation’s 
strategies, objectives and key risks. Consideration of these is an integral 
part of annual and specific job planning. 

Page 42



2 
 

Principle How Discharged 

Is appropriately 
positioned and 
adequately resourced 

The HoIA has the necessary reporting lines and unfettered access to the 
relevant statutory officers, audit committees and the external auditors of all 
client organisations. 

The resources of the IA function are assessed annually as part of the audit 
planning process. 

It is the duty of the HoIA to highlight any concern regarding the resources 
available for IA to the organisation. 

Demonstrates quality 
and strives for 
continuous 
improvement 

The HoIA maintains a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
(QAIP) as required by PSIAS.  This aims to ensure the delivery of high-
quality IA services but to also identify any opportunities for further 
improvement. The client feedback process is a key element of this and 
liaison with other external parties (e.g. S&WY HoIA Group, CIPFA Special 
Interest Group for IA and Police Audit Group). 

Communicates 
effectively 

A key output from IA is the audit report. These are compiled in a clear and 
concise manner to highlight the key areas for management to address. 

Regular liaison meetings are held with each client throughout the year via 
client update meetings with nominated SPOCs, DMTs, to ensure the 
sharing of information and that operational working arrangements, job 
planning and delivery are effective. 

The HoIA’s annual report is also a key element of organisational 
communication. 

Provides risk-based 
assurance and advice 

All IA planning (formal assurance work and advice/consultancy) considers 
the risk, concerns, issues and threats to an organisation, a service or 
system in whatever capacity IA work is focussed. 

IA reports refer to these matters such that management are alerted to 
undertake any actions to address risks etc. 

The HoIA’s annual opinion focusses on assurance about the effectiveness 
of an organisation’s risk management, control and governance 
arrangements. 

Is insightful, proactive 
and future-focussed 

The scoping of IA work includes prompts and opportunities to provide 
innovative solutions, provide advice and consider future activities, capacity 
and efficiencies. 

This is particularly an area of focus in the advisory work IA undertakes.   

Promotes 
organisational 
improvement 

All IA work as referenced above, is designed to assist management and the 
organisation deliver its strategic and operational objectives in the most 
efficient and effective way. 

 

2.4 The Barnsley Internal Audit Service operates within a challenging environment across all client 

organisations to deliver the services each requires and to ensure it provides added value.  The 

Service needs to be able to react and adapt to the rapid pace of change which is taking place 

both locally, regionally and nationally.  Accordingly, and in addition to the core principles in the 

PSIAS, the Charter has been extended to include even wider aspirations of the Internal Audit 

Service, which are to: 

 

 Develop, maintain and enhance relationships particularly where a client organisation is 
undergoing significant change to ensure that the service is aware of and understands its 
needs and objectives; 

 promote and support clients with regards to an increase in regional and collaborative 
working; 

 understand its position with respect to the organisation’s other sources of assurance and 
plan our work accordingly; 

 be seen as a catalyst and support for change at the heart of the organisation; 
 be the auditor of choice, delivering exceptional client service; 
 add value and assist the organisation in achieving its strategic objectives; 
 be forward looking – knowing where the organisation wishes to be and being aware of the 

relevant national agenda and its impact; 
 be innovative and challenging; 

Page 43



3 
 

 help to shape the ethics and standards of the organisation, reducing bureaucracy whilst 
maintaining high standards of governance and compliance; 

 ensure the right resources are available recognising that the skills mix, capacity, 
specialisms, qualifications and experience requirements all change constantly;   

 ensure all staff are supported in undertaking relevant professional qualifications and 
continuous professional development;  

 share best practice with other internal auditors, clients and other professional services; 
 seek opportunities for joint working with other organisations’ auditors and assurance 

providers. 
 

3. Authority and Scope of Internal Audit 

 

3.1 The requirement for an internal audit function is detailed within the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 which state that a relevant body must “undertake an effective internal audit to 

evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes taking into 

account public sector internal auditing standards and guidance [PSIAS]”. 

 

3.2 In accordance with the PSIAS, the scope of Internal Audit allows that in fulfilment of audit 

responsibilities there will be unrestricted coverage of all the organisation’s activities and 

unrestricted access to all functions, records, data, personnel, premises and assets of the 

organisation and its partner organisations, as deemed necessary in the course of audit work and 

as set out in relevant partnership agreements and contracts. Internal Audit has therefore the 

authority to obtain such information and explanations as it considers necessary to fulfil its 

responsibilities. 

 

3.3 All records, documentation and information accessed in the course of undertaking internal audit 

activities are to be used solely for the conduct of these activities. The Head of Internal Audit 

(HoIA) and staff are responsible and accountable for maintaining the confidentiality of the 

information they receive during the course of their work. 

 

3.4 The scope of internal auditing encompasses, but is not limited to, the examination and evaluation 

of the adequacy and effectiveness of the governance, risk management, and internal control 

processes in an organisation as well as the quality of performance management arrangements 

in carrying out assigned responsibilities to achieve the objectives of the organisation.  

 

4. Purpose of Internal Audit 

 

4.1 Each client organisation is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk / concern 

management processes, control systems, accounting records and governance arrangements. 

Internal Audit plays a vital part in advising whether effective and efficient arrangements exist. The 

annual HoIA opinion, which informs the annual governance statement, both emphasises and 

reflects upon the importance of this aspect of Internal Audit work. The response to Internal Audit 

activity should lead to the strengthening of the control environment and therefore contribute to 

the achievement of the corporate objectives, improvement and support innovation and change. 

 

4.2 This is achieved through internal audit providing a combination of assurance and 

consulting/advisory activities. Assurance work involves assessing how well the systems and 

processes are designed (adequacy) and how well they are working (application). Consulting and 

advisory activities are available and complimentary to assist management make improvements 

to systems and processes where necessary. 

 

5. Definitions 

 

5.1 As the Internal Audit function serves a number of different organisations and for the purpose of 

this Charter the following definitions apply: 

 

 The Board – generally the governance group charged with seeking independent assurance on 

the adequacy of the control, risk management and governance framework, and the main 

oversight body for the delivery of the internal audit function. Such Boards are usually the group 

performing the role of an audit committee. 

Page 44



4 
 

 

 Senior Management – generally those responsible for the leadership and direction of the 

organisation as a collective, incorporating the ‘chief executive’ role. 

 

6. Responsibilities of Internal Audit and Senior Management 

 

6.1 The responsibilities and objectives of Internal Audit are as follows:   

 

i. To be a valuable asset to the organisation by supporting senior management in meeting 
their corporate responsibilities. 

ii. To contribute to assurances to those charged with governance in relation to the robustness 
and reliability of internal controls, risk / concern management and governance to support 
the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 

iii. To support the Statutory S151 Officer / Responsible Financial Officer in discharging their 
duties. 

iv. To periodically review, appraise and report on the extent to which the assets and interests 
of the organisation are accounted for and safeguarded from loss and the suitability and 
reliability of financial and other management data and information. 

v. To support the requirement to seek efficiency including the arrangements for achieving 
value for money and effective change management. 

vi. To provide soundly based assurances to management on the adequacy and effectiveness 
of their internal control, risk / concern and governance arrangements.  Such assurances 
include information technology governance and ethical behaviour. 

vii. To assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation's contracts, procurement, 
commissioning and associated governance arrangements. 

viii. To assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s corporate risk / concern 
management process and the level of embeddedness in business as usual, whilst ensuring 
that Internal Audit does not adopt management responsibilities for managing risks.  

ix. To evaluate the risk of fraud and the manner in which it is managed by the organisation.  
In addition, to reduce the incidence of fraud and irregularity by publicising the findings of 
fraud investigations to act as a deterrent and provide a quality fraud and irregularity 
prevention, detection and investigation service. 

x. To disseminate examples of best practice in the application of an effective control, risk / 
concern and governance framework.  

xi. To provide an Internal Audit advisory service intended to add value and improve 
governance, risk / concern management and control processes.  

xii. To provide advice and an objective and supportive consulting service in respect of the 
development of new programmes and processes and / or significant changes to existing 
programmes and processes including the design of appropriate controls.  This is usually 
achieved through membership of Officer Groups, Governance and other Boards or working 
parties as well as direct contact with officers within services / functions / departments.  Such 
advice and consultation work forms an important part of the audit plan. 

xiii. To prepare timely, concise and informative reports to management to facilitate the 
improvement of the control environment. 

xiv. To undertake Audit support activities in respect of assisting the Audit Committee (or 
equivalent) to discharge its responsibilities; monitoring the implementation of agreed 
management actions; disseminating across the entity better practice and lessons learnt 
arising from its audit activities and having oversight of the audit function. 
 

6.2 Under the PSIAS, the HoIA has a specific responsibility to lead and manage the Internal Audit 

function and have the necessary and unfettered access to senior management and audit 

committees. 

 

6.3 Senior management also have responsibilities under this Charter in order to maximise the 

effectiveness and efficiency of the Internal Audit function. These are to: 

 

 Engage fully and flexibly in the audit planning process, providing information and insight into 
high risk areas or areas of strategic focus or concern 

 Nominate and commit to lead officers for each internal audit assignment and a point of 
reference for the overall management of the internal audit service 

 Engage in a timely manner with Internal Audit in the scoping of work and agreeing terms of 
reference, dealing with audit queries and discussing draft and final reports 

Page 45



5 
 

 Provide evidence to Internal Audit (and the audit committee) of the implementation of agreed 
management actions.  

 

6.4 Arrangements will be made with each client organisation to monitor joint compliance with these 

responsibilities. 

 

6.5 It should be noted that internal audit is not responsible for the operation of control functions within 

the Council (or other organisations); these responsibilities rest with senior management. Internal 

audit should not be regarded as a substitute for good management. 

 

7. Position of Internal Audit in the Organisation(s) 

 

7.1 Within the Council the HoIA reports functionally to the Audit Committee and organisationally to 

the Service Director – Finance (Section 151 Officer). 

 

7.2 With regards to non-council client organisations the HoIA reports functionally to the respective 

audit committee / Board. Whilst the organisational relationship is different in the external client 

organisations, to fulfil professional responsibilities the HoIA will report to the respective Chief 

Finance Officer and/or Chief Executive. 

 

7.3 Irrespective of the organisation, the HoIA has direct and unfettered access to the Chief Executive 

(or equivalent), Monitoring Officer (or equivalent) and Responsible Finance Officer. The HoIA 

also has access to the respective audit committees where this is deemed necessary in the 

discharging of professional responsibilities. 

 

8. Internal Audit Resources / Skills / Competencies and Standards 

 

8.1 In accordance with PSIAS, the HoIA will be professionally qualified and suitably experienced in 

the leadership and management of an internal audit function. These requirements reflect the 

responsibilities of the HoIA in leading a professional discipline, demonstrating personal 

independence and objectivity and the need to liaise with senior management, members and other 

professionals. 

 

8.2 It is the responsibility of the HoIA to establish and maintain an appropriately skilled and 

experienced team and to set a culture of continuous improvement for the function. Resources will 

be set aside in the operational budget for the purposes of staff development and general and 

professional training. 

 

8.3 At least annually, the HoIA will submit to the 'Chief Executive' and the Audit Committee an Internal 

Audit plan for review and approval. The plan will consist of a work schedule and resource 

requirements for the next financial year(s). The plan will include the impact of any resource 

limitations and significant actual or planned changes. 

 

8.4 The Standards element of the PSIAS highlights some key expected competencies. These are: 

 

8.5 Independence: 

 

8.5.1 An independent approach and mind-set is essential to the effectiveness of the Internal Audit 

function. To ensure this, Internal Audit operates within a framework that allows: - 

 

 Unrestricted access to the relevant senior officers; the Chair of the Audit Committee and Audit 
Committee Members; individual Senior Management Officers; employees and the 
responsible External Auditor. 

 The HoIA to report in his own name. 

 Segregation from line operations. Where the Head of Internal Audit has management 
responsibility for an operational area (i.e. Data Protection Officer for the Council and Clients, 
Risk Management, Governance and Assurance, Corporate Anti-Fraud), the Audit Manager 
will be responsible for managing reviews of those areas and for approving the final reports. 

 

8.5.2 The Head of Internal Audit reports directly to the Board and it is the Board’s responsibility to: 

Page 46



6 
 

 

 Approve the internal audit charter; 

 Approve the risk based internal audit plan (within the approved resource envelope); 

 Receive updates on internal audit activity and performance relative to the delivery of the 

plan and other matters; 

 Make appropriate enquiries of management and the Head of Internal Audit to determine 

whether there are inappropriate scope, operational responsibility or resource limitations. 

 

8.5.3 The Internal Audit function has no responsibility for developing or implementing procedures or 

systems and does not prepare records or engage in original line processing functions or activities.   

 

8.5.4 Internal Auditors are generally not involved in undertaking non-audit activities and an Auditor will 

not be involved in the audit of any system or process for which they had previous operational 

responsibility for a period of two years, where they have secondary employment or where there 

is a conflict of interest.  

 

8.5.5 Audit responsibilities are periodically rotated to avoid over-familiarity and complacency and to 

provide for service continuity and resilience. 

 

8.6 Objectivity: 

 

8.6.1 Internal Auditors must exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating, 

and communicating information about the activity or process being examined. Internal Auditors 

must make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances and: 

 

 not participate in any activity or relationship that may impair or be presumed to impair their 
unbiased assessment. This participation includes those activities or relationships that may 
be in conflict with the interests of the organisation. 

 not accept anything that may impair or be presumed to impair their professional judgement. 

 disclose all material facts known to them that, if not disclosed, may distort the reporting of 
activities under review. 

 declare any real or perceived interests on an annual basis.  In addition, a prompt is included 
at the assignment planning phase of each audit and officers are reminded each year (and 
asked to confirm understanding) that they will comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct 
plus that of their professional body (e.g. AAT, CIPFA, IIA). 

 

8.7 Confidentiality: 

 

8.7.1 Internal Auditors are expected to display confidentiality and: 

 

 Shall be prudent in the use and protection of information acquired in the course of their 
duties.  

 Shall not use information for any personal gain or in any manner that would be contrary to 
the law or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the organisation. 

 

8.8 Integrity: 

 

8.8.1 In the conduct of audit work, Internal Audit staff will: 

 

 perform their work with honesty, diligence and responsibility. 

 observe the law and make disclosures expected by the law and the profession. 

 not knowingly be a party to any illegal activity or engage in acts that are discreditable to the 
profession of internal auditing or to the organisation. 

 respect and contribute to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the organisation. 

 comply with relevant professional codes/standards of conduct and declare any real or 
perceived conflicts of interest. 

 respect and contribute to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the organisation. 

 observe the Standards of Public Life's Seven Principles of Public Life. 
 

 

Page 47



7 
 

8.9 Competency: 

 

8.9.1 Internal Auditors are competent in their role by: 

 

 engaging only in those services for which they have the necessary knowledge, skills and 
experience. 

 performing internal auditing services in accordance with the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. 

 continually improving their proficiency and effectiveness and quality of their services. 
 
8.9.2 The allocation of audit work to an Internal Auditor is based on consideration of their knowledge, 

skills and experience and any expression of interest to develop in a particular field/business area.  

Internal Auditors are encouraged to undertake continuous professional development and 

opportunities for further development are discussed and agreed during day to day on the job 

supervision, mentoring, 1:1s and PDR meetings. A training plan is maintained for the Service.    

 

8.9.3 The HoIA maintains a Quality Assessment and Improvement Programme (QAIP) as required by 

the PSIAS and reports this to each client audit committee on an annual basis. 

 

9. Access to Relevant Personnel and Information 

 

9.1 Each member of the Internal Audit Team will carry with them at all times an ID card that clearly 

shows their responsibilities and authority as auditors. In the fulfilment of their audit duties this 

entitles them to unrestricted access to all records, assets, personnel and premises belonging to 

each client organisation. In addition, internal auditors have the authority to obtain such information 

and explanations as is considered necessary to meet the requirements of the audit activity. Where 

necessary, such access will be granted on demand and not subject to prior notice. 

 

10. Scope of Internal Audit Activity 

 

10.1 The HoIA is responsible for producing an annual report to each client organisation’s audit 

committee providing an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the control, risk / concern 

management and governance arrangements. Through careful annual audit planning and based 

on a programme of audit activities of sufficient breadth and depth covering the whole organisation, 

the HoIA is able to produce such an annual opinion. 

 

10.2 The overall approach is determined by the HoIA and will take into account the level of assurance 

required, the significance of the objectives of the organisation, the degree of change within the 

organisation, the prevailing risk appetite and culture, and previous audit findings and 

implementation of agreed management actions.  

 

10.3 To fulfil the scope of internal audit, the programme of audit activities is usually varied covering 

assurance work, advice, consultancy, anti-fraud work and irregularity investigations. The types of 

internal audit work are shown as annexe 1.  

 

10.4 Increasingly, a major contribution to the HoIA’s annual opinion is through advisory/consultancy 

type work where in a more proactive and timelier basis input can be given and assurance obtained 

regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the activities of the organisation, e.g. through 

attendance at key management meetings, steering groups and project and programme boards. 

This work is also valuable for audit planning and generally ensuring a high level of awareness of 

the organisation’s direction, objectives, pressures and performance.  

 

11. Internal Audit Planning 

 

11.1 Setting an annual or periodic risk-based plan is the responsibility of the HoIA. The audit plan is 

determined through a process of information gathering, reflection, forward looking and above all 

consultation and engagement with senior management and the Board. 

 

11.2 The following are the key issues in the development of the risk-based audit plan: - 

 

Page 48



8 
 

 An understanding of the organisation’s vision and ambition, as articulated within the 
organisation's strategic plans and ensuring that audit coverage is directed and links to these 
areas of corporate importance. 

 Identification of the significant (key) risks, concerns and issues arising from the above and 
understanding which areas of service delivery the significant risks impact upon. 

 Internal Audit provides support to management and directs resources to areas where the 
Service can add value and support change and innovation. 

 

11.3 The HoIA will advise senior management and the Board regarding the planned coverage and 

if/where this is potentially compromised due to limited resources. 

 

11.4 Each year the HoIA will set out the planning process and key issues as part of senior management 

and Board engagement. 

 

12. Reporting 

 

12.1 The key output from internal audit activity is a report, a written and formal product to show the 

outcome from the assignment.  

 

12.2  Audit Assignment Reporting 

 

12.2.1 In reporting the outcome of individual audit assignments, the lead Internal Auditor will follow a 

proactive and consultative approach to engage management. The key principles of which are: - 

 

 Advance discussion and agreement of the scope and objectives of audit assignments, the 
timescales for the completion of the work, and key client / audit contacts along with the 
recipients of the final audit report. 

 Immediate reporting of any significant or critical issues arising during the course of audit 
work. 

 Post audit meetings to discuss the conclusion and outcome of audit work on a prioritised 
basis and to agree management actions and timescales.  

 Any areas of disagreement which are not resolved by discussion are recorded in the action 
plan and the residual risk highlighted within the report.  

 Providing management with the opportunity to give feedback on the conduct of the work and 
how valuable and effective they found the audit process and report.  

 

12.2.2 The process for the communication of audit work is designed to conform with the PSIAS. 

 

12.2.3 Final audit reports will normally include an overall assurance opinion on the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the system of risk / concern management, controls and governance 

arrangements.  The report will be issued on a timely basis and responses sought monthly from 

senior management on the implementation of high and medium agreed management actions.   

The non-receipt of a response will be followed up with the responsible manager, on a quarterly 

basis with the Executive Director or equivalent and also reported to the Audit Committee. 

 

12.2.4 A process has been established with each organisation to ensure the high and medium 

categorised agreed actions are implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk 

of not taking action.  Internal Audit will in certain circumstances undertake specific further work to 

obtain direct evidence of management actions having been taken as planned. The 

implementation of agreed management actions is reported to each audit committee where senior 

management may be invited to explain any delays in taking action.  

 

12.2.5 All low categorised agreed management actions are reported to senior management (i.e. 

Executive Directors) on a 6-monthly basis. It is management’s responsibility to obtain assurance 

that these have been implemented, and they are required to declare that they have fulfilled this 

responsibility within the annual declaration which forms part of the Annual Governance Review.  

 

 

 

 

Page 49



9 
 

12.3 Reporting of Ad Hoc Advice and Development / Consultancy Work 

  

12.3.1 Internal Audit undertakes a variety of tasks which do not always justify a formal audit report, e.g. 

responding to one-off queries, advice and consultancy type work given verbally at meetings e.g., 

projects and developments.  Internal Audit does however ensure that details of advice given are 

recorded by the retention of memos / copy e-mails, or file notes and minutes of meetings.  Such 

records are retained in respect of advice given which is likely to (or intended to) influence 

management decisions or effect changes in systems and processes. The result of this work is 

considered as part of the HoIA’s overall assurance opinion.  

 

12.3.2 Issues and risks / concerns arising would also be recorded within project and operational risk / 

concern registers in order to be managed by project lead officers.  Details of issues arising would 

not necessarily be reported separately to the Audit Committee.  However, details of the 

engagement and work undertaken would be recorded within the respective Audit Committee 

Report and any material issues would be followed up in accordance with the standard reporting 

and monitoring process. 

 

12.4 Reporting to the Audit Committee 

 

12.4.1 Internal Audit reports as follows: - 

 

 Details of audit plans, performance against plans and against key performance measures, 
and on significant control or compliance issues arising from audit work, longstanding agreed 
management actions and management responses, completed projects / advice, unplanned, 
cancelled or deferred audit work.  

 To client Audit Committee's on its performance and on individual audit reports. 

 Audit Committees provide a route for the escalation of a failure to respond to audit reports, 
or the non-implementation of agreed management actions, with the potential for 
management to be called to answer to the Committee. 

 The Audit Committee receives an annual report summarising the outcome of the review of 
the effectiveness of the internal audit function which is required under the PSIAS. 

 

12.5 Annual Report of the Head of Internal Audit 

 

12.5.1 The annual report to the Audit Committee includes the HoIA’s opinion on the overall adequacy 

and effectiveness of the organisation's framework of governance, risk / concern management 

and control as determined from the programme of work undertaken.  The following elements are 

incorporated into annual audit reports: - 

 

 The HoIA's opinion on the overall effectiveness of the organisation's internal control, risk / 
concern management and governance environment based on work undertaken.  

 Disclosure of any qualification to this opinion, together with the reason for the qualification. 

 The disclosure of any impairments or restriction in scope of audit work. 

 A summary of the audit work undertaken to provide this opinion, including any reliance 
placed on assurance work by other bodies. 

 Details of any issues that the HoIA judges to be particularly relevant to the AGS. 

 A comparison of work actually undertaken with the work originally planned and a summary 
of the performance of Internal Audit against its performance measures and criteria.  

 A statement to confirm work has been completed independently and in accordance with the 
PSIAS. 

 The results of the Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (QAIP).   

 Any other issues that the HoIA judges is relevant to the preparation of the AGS. 
 

13. Quality Assurance 

 

13.1 Internal Audit is committed to provide a high-quality service to all client organisations and 

encourages clients to give feedback. A programme of internal quality assurance reviews of 

completed work are undertaken during the year to provide assurance that these have been 

undertaken in compliance with PSIAS and operational procedures.  All matters relating to the 

Page 50



10 
 

quality of the function are captured within the Quality Assessment and Improvement Plan (QAIP) 

which is maintained by the HoIA and reported to each audit committee annually. 

 

14. Contacts 

 

 The key contacts for the Internal Audit Service are: 

 

Rob Winter CPFA 

Head of Internal Audit, Anti-Fraud and Assurance 

robwinter@barnsley.gov.uk 

 07786 525319 

 

Sharon Bradley CMIIA 

Audit Manager  

sharonbradley@barnsley.gov.uk 

 07795 305846 

 

The office address is: 

 

Barnsley MBC 

Internal Audit Services 

Westgate Plaza 

Barnsley 

S70 9EY 

  

Page 51

mailto:robwinter@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:sharonbradley@barnsley.gov.uk


Annexe 1 

Types of Internal Audit Work 

 

Advice To meet requests from management for information and guidance on 

matters of internal control, procedures, compliance with relevant policies 

etc. 

 

IT Audit Operational IT audit designed to assess and review the operating 

procedures supporting key IT policies, environmental controls and input into 

system developments and new systems. 

 

Information 

Governance 

Work specifically looking at the adequacy and effectiveness of the 

management, use, control and security of information, compliance with the 

requirements of data protection legislation as well as internal policies and 

procedures. 

 

Support the Data Protection Officer in undertaking specific compliance 

reviews in relation to Data Protection legislation. 

 

Regularity  Audit work designed to review and assess compliance with policies and 

procedures to ensure internal controls exist and are effective. 

 

Such work covers the functional areas of services and establishments. 

 

Important Internal Audit work to demonstrate presence at an operational 

level.  Work supported by risk based and themed audit work. 

 

Financial Systems Work designed to assess and review the adequacy of the internal controls 

within the financial systems of the Organisation. Such work will take the 

form of either a walkthrough or full compliance audit on a risk-based 

approach set out in the annual strategy.  

 

This work is also considered by External Audit as part of their work on the 

statutory opinion on the accounts. 

 

Grant Claims Work necessary to independently verify grant claims as required by the 

awarding body.  

 

Management Audit 

(Incl. Corporate 

items) 

 

Provision for work on corporate procedures and processes. Also 

incorporates work specifically for management on an advisory basis. 

 

These jobs also tend to be of a significant length in terms of Internal Audit 

days and elapsed time due to their detail and nature. 

 

Anti-Fraud and 

Investigations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This work, undertaken or led by the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team, focuses 

on prevention, detection and investigations. 

 

Prevention work focuses on developing good procedures, polices and 

guidance for managers and ensuring awareness so that appropriate 

controls are in place to avoid irregularities. 

 

Detection work focuses on proactively examining the transactions of the 

organisation and other information to identify potentially fraudulent activity. 

 

Investigations work is largely in response to allegations of irregularity being 

brought to Internal Audit’s attention. This work is often extremely sensitive 

and requires great care, tact, diplomacy and attention to detail. A report to 

management is most often the output from this work where audit findings 

Page 52



12 
 

are described along with recommendations regarding potential disciplinary 

action or referral to the Police, and guidance on improving controls to 

minimise the risk of such matters arising again. 

 

Commissioning, 

Procurement and 

Contract Audit  

 

 

 

Commissioning & Procurement - generally focussed on the policies, 

procedures and systems in place to identify, assess and deliver a 

requirement; including compliance with procurement regulations (EU 

requirements and/or Contract Procedure Rules, Commissioning and 

Procurement Strategies/Policies).   

 

Contract - this work focuses on the controls within the organisation’s 

contractual policies and procedures to ensure that individual contracts are 

entered on a timely basis and that these protect the organisation's interests.  

In addition, that the contract management arrangements are robust, and 

payments made are appropriate. 

 

Project 

Management 

 

Work which evaluates the effectiveness of the application of project 

management principles in order to achieve given outcomes / deliverables. 

 

Corporate 

Governance 

Assurance 

Requirements under the Accounts and Audit Regulations mean that all 

client organisations have to prepare and publish a statement on the overall 

adequacy of their governance arrangements (annual governance 

statement).   

 

A key element to providing assurance to the organisation is the work of 

Internal Audit overall and particularly in the key areas of corporate 

governance, risk management, performance management and general 

policy and procedure compliance. 

 

Audit Committee 

Support 

Time is allocated to support the various audit committees.  This work 

involves the provision of reports, guidance and training.   

 

 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Head of Internal Audit, 

Anti-Fraud and Assurance 

 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 2nd June 2021  

 

ANNUAL FRAUD REPORT 2020/21  

 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 
1.1 This report provides an account of counter fraud related activity undertaken 

by Internal Audit’s Corporate Anti-Fraud Team during the period 1 April 2020 
to 31 March 2021. 

 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1 It is recommended that: 

 

i. The Audit and Governance Committee considers and comments 

upon the Annual Fraud Report as part of its monitoring role; and 

 

ii. Continue their support in embedding a culture of zero tolerance 

and high levels of awareness regarding fraud and corruption. 

 

3. Background 
 
3.1 The Council is responsible for the administration of substantial amounts of 

public funds and, as all local authorities, is likely to be a target for fraudsters. 
It is therefore vital to maintain robust policies and procedures to safeguard 
the council against potential fraud and to seize every opportunity to tackle 
fraudulent activity directed against the council.  

 
3.2 It is an unrealistic expectation however to remove and avoid all fraud or loss 

from a large and diverse local authority. But, with a concerted effort from 
elected members, senior management and all employees it is reasonable to 
expect that we can reduce and ultimately minimise the incidence and impact 
of fraud and corruption and thus ensure valuable resources can be used for 
front line services. 

 
3.3 The Audit and Governance Committee have received update reports 

summarising work undertaken in respect of anti-fraud work and 
investigations.  

 
3.4 Senior managers continue to be aware and accept that anti-fraud and 

corruption measures start with them. Internal Audit and the Corporate Anti-
Fraud Team provide an important advisory and guiding role but cannot 
assume the responsibility for operational anti-fraud controls within services 
and systems. 

 
3.5  In 2020/21 the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team had a total budgeted plan of 600 

days. However, as part of the Council’s response to the pandemic, two 
members of the CAFT were redeployed to other council departments for 101 

Page 55

Item 7



days. Preventative anti-fraud work undertaken totalled 319 days and reactive 
investigations totalled 236 days. The additional 56 days relates to time 
provided by Internal Audit colleagues in respect of business support grant 
assurance. 

 
3.6 The following sections summarise the corporate pro-active counter fraud 

activity and reactive investigation work undertaken during the year. 
 

4. Covid-19 Counter Fraud Work 
 
 Business Support Scheme 
 
4.1 The CAFT have conducted post event assurance work throughout most of 

the financial year to ensure that these grants had been paid accurately as 
required by Government guidance. This guidance also required local 
authorities to complete a Post Payment Assurance Plan and Fraud Risk 
Assessment for each business grant scheme in order to ascertain what 
actions and checks should be undertaken to minimise the risk of error and/or 
fraud and over payment.  

 
4.2  The same guidance required local authorities to provide a monthly report to 

Central Government comprising an update on their Fraud Risk Assessments 
and pre and post-payment assurance activities as they were delivered. The 
Principal Auditor (Corporate Anti-Fraud) has completed the Council’s Fraud 
Risk Assessments and submitted the monthly returns. 

 
4.3 The Council has utilised the Cabinet Office’s NFI website to conduct post 

event assurance checks to: 
 

 Verify the bank accounts of companies in receipt of small business (SB) 
and retail, hospitality and leisure (RHL) grants; and 

 Provide insight into whether the company was trading at the relevant date 
for these grants 

 
4.4 The Council submitted records relating to 3,720 SB and RHL grant payments 

to the NFI for verification and the CAFT have used the results to conduct 
post event assurance checks. Results to date have: 

 

 Confirmed that 3,004 grant payments have been made to eligible 
businesses; 

 Identified nine ineligible small business rate grants (£90K) which are to be 
recovered; 

 Resulted in the recovery of two small business rate grant (£20K); 

 The remaining 652 are in the process of being checked. 
 
Council Tax 

 
7.6 The CAFT provided a support to the Benefits and Taxation Department who 

had received a significant increase in the number of applications for local 
council tax support at the start of the pandemic. 

  

Page 56



7.8 Two members of CAFT were redeployed to Benefits and Taxation for a 
period to assist with the NFI Single Person Discount review. This support 
resulted in 224 discounts being cancelled which raised an additional £87,435 
council tax income being raised across the identified accounts with further 
estimated* fraud savings of £85,998.  

 *The Cabinet Office Outcomes Calculation Methodologies 2018/19 estimate of future losses that may 
have occurred without intervention as a result of an NFI match. 

 
 Scams 
 
7.13 The Covid-19 pandemic has seen a significant increase in scams as 

criminals take the opportunity to exploit people’s fears e.g. purchasing of 
PPE which does not exist. Criminals have also used Government branding to 
try to trick people, including using HMRC branding to make spurious offers of 
financial support through unsolicited emails, phone calls and text messages. 
Reports of fake websites have also been reported.  

 
7.14 The CAFT received regular fraud alerts from the National Anti-Fraud 

Network, City of London Police, and the Fraud Advisory Panel throughout 
2020/21. These alerts were shared within the Council (via the Intranet) and 
externally via Corporate Communications. 

 

5. Proactive Anti-Fraud and Corruption Activity 2020/21 

 

 Acknowledging and Preventing Fraud 

 
5.1 Fraud prevention in the Council means ensuring that sound policy and 

procedural measures are in place in all Council departments. Internal Audit 
and the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team continuously review the Council’s 
systems to identify areas of high fraud risk.  

 
5.2 The Principal Auditor (CAF) has attended Business Unit DMTs to assist 

management with the completion of their fraud risk assessments.  
 
5.3 These assessments covered a variety of fraud risk areas including bribery, 

grant fraud, blue badge fraud, cyber fraud, council tax fraud, HR/payroll 
frauds, procurement fraud, planning fraud, social care fraud, financial and 
false accounting frauds.  

 
5.4 The overall risk level is considered to be a medium risk which is not 

considered to be unusual for a local authority of this size. 
 
5.5 The most substantial risk that the Council faces is that of cyber fraud. 

Fraudsters are using advanced technology to exploit vulnerabilities of 
individuals, businesses and public bodies. In order to combat these risks and 
minimise any losses from a successful attack the Council has a Cyber 
Security Strategy 

 
5.6 The results will be used when considering future audit planning and to 

provide assurance for the annual governance review.  
 

Page 57



5.7 Other counter fraud work commenced in 2020/21 and carried forward to 
2021/22 includes: 

 

 participating in a corporate group to consider procurement fraud risk; and 

 review and development of corporate training material through the POD 
system. 

 
5.8 The progress and results of this work will be included in future reports to the 

Committee. 
 

 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
 
5.9 The NFI is a biennial, mandatory, data matching exercise which all UK local 

authorities must participate in. The aim of the exercise is to identify possible 
cases of fraud, error and overpayments within public bodies, e.g. local 
authorities, central government, the NHS. The Council has routinely 
participated in this initiative from its inception in 1996/97.  

 
5.10 A number of data matches in respect of the 2020/21 exercise were received 

at the end of January 2021. Other matches relating to business support grant 
payments and HMRC records are due to be received by the end of June 
2021. 

 
5.11  A total of 14,001 matches have been received and 1,181 have been 

processed. There is no requirement for all matches to be investigated and, to 
assist with the prioritisation of investigation, matches are categorised high, 
medium or low risk. Some matches appear in more than one report e.g. a 
match may relate to a housing benefit claimant who also appears in a council 
tax support data match report. Improvements to the NFI website enable 
these matches to be investigated at the same time to avoid duplication of 
work. 

 
5.12 Investigation work has cleared 939 matches as ‘no issue’ with a further 242 

records being amended due to error.  
 
5.13 A breakdown of the results from the 2020/21 exercise are shown below: 
  

Subject Monetary 

Value 

Number of 

Cases 

Pensions Overpayments £10,629.45 9 

Blue badges cancelled* N/A 223 

Total Overpayments £10,629.45 242 

  
 *A data match between blue badge parking permits and DWP deceased report identified that 

223 blue badges remained in circulation. Records have been updated to cancel the permits.  
 

6. Reactive Fraud Work  
 

 Detecting and Investigating Fraud 

 

Page 58



6.1 Despite strong preventative measures, there are inevitably a minority of 
dishonest people who will be intent on attempting fraud or trying to find new 
ways to evade preventative systems or indeed taking an opportunistic risk. 
When this happens, it is essential that we are able to promptly detect 
instances of fraud that have occurred. 

 
6.2 The Council remains focused in its commitment to take all necessary action 

to investigate fraud and instigate appropriate sanctions. 
 
6.3 All of the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team members dedicated to preventative 

and investigative work are professionally qualified in this area. 
 
6.4 A summary of the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team case load and values of fraud 

or overpayments identified during 2020/21 are shown at Appendix 1. 
 
 Counter Fraud Checks 
 
6.5 The CAFT continue to provide counter fraud checks of submitted insurance 

claims and Right to Buy applications. These checks, including financial and 
residential verification, provide assurance that the claims/applications are 
genuine and bona fides. 

 
6.6 CAFT has undertaken checks against 44 insurance claims during the 2020-

21 financial year. A summary of these referrals is shown below. 
 

 2020/21 2019/20 

Details  No. No. 

No evidence of fraud 41 76 
Claim refused – Council not liable 1 1 
Withdrawn by claimant 1 1 
C/F to 2021-2022 3 3 

Total  44 81 

 
6.7 CAFT has undertaken checks against 132 RTB applications during the 

financial year 2020/2021.A summary of these referrals is shown below. 
 

 2020/21 2019/20 

Details  No. No. 
No evidence of fraud 132 148 
Referred to DWP 0 2 
Ongoing 0 1 
Total  132 151 

 

7.  Performance Measures  
 
7.1 CAFT’s success will be measured by: 

 Monitoring the quality of corporate fraud referrals (inputs) on a 
quarterly basis; 

 Measure the results (outputs) and success rate of corporate 
investigations on a quarterly basis; 

Page 59



 Production of six-monthly updates and an annual report to the Audit 
and Governance Committee 

 

8. Local Area Implications 
 
8.1 There are no Local Area Implications arising from this report. 
  

9. Consultations 
 
9.1 All audit reports are discussed with the main auditee. Individual audit reports 

are provided to the appropriate Executive and/or Service Director to apprise 
him/her of key issues raised and remedial actions agreed.  

 

10. Compatibility with European Convention on Human Rights 

 
10.1  In the conduct of investigations, the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team operates 

under the provisions of the Data Protection Act 2018, the Human Rights Act 
1998, the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 and the Police and 
Criminal Evidence Act. 

 

11. Reduction of Crime and Disorder 
 
11.1 An inherent aspect of counter fraud work is to prevent, detect and investigate 

incidents of fraud, theft and corruption. The control issues arising from audit 
investigations have been considered to ensure improvements in overall 
controls. Additionally, Internal Audit Services ensures that in specific 
instances, management takes appropriate action to minimise the risks of 
fraud and corruption re-occurring.   

 
11.2 Counter fraud work is carried out in compliance with criminal and civil law 

and criminal investigation procedures relevant to investigation work including: 
the Police and Criminal Evidence Act (PACE) 1984, the Criminal Procedure 
and Investigations Act (CPIA) 1996, the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Act (RIPA) 2000, the Public Interest Disclosure Act 998 and relevant 
Employment Law, Fraud Act 2006, Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 and 
Prevention of Social Housing Fraud Act 2013. 

 
11.3 Where an investigation occurs that identifies a potential criminal offence, the 

matter is always referred to the police. 
 

12. Risk Management Considerations 
 
12.1 Failure to have robust counter fraud arrangements will increase the Council’s 

susceptibility to fraud and will result in loss of public money. 
 

13. Employee Implications 
  
13.1 All employees are under an obligation through their contracts of employment 

to be honest and adhere to the Code of Conduct.  

 

14. Financial Implications 

Page 60



 
14.1 The structure and budget that CAFT operate within has proven successful and 

provides sufficient resource required to carry out an efficient value for money 
anti-fraud service. 

 
 14.2 Identifying a definite amount to be recognised as the impact of the CAFT is 

difficult beyond such results as the single person discount and other benefit 
work. Much of the work of CAFT is about avoiding loss. The NFI produce an 
‘Outcomes Calculation Methodology’ document that seeks to put a value on 
the results of ‘fraud avoidance’. For example: 

 
   £575 per blue badge cancelled to reflect lost parking charges 
   £93,000 per property recovered through tenancy fraud 
   £72,000 per Right to Buy application withdrawn 
 
 14.3 These (and other) calculations are used to estimate the national impact of 

fraud. Reflecting on these figures together with the periodic results from SPD 
exercises demonstrates that the CAFT more than pays for itself every year in 
direct activity and contributes additional fraud / loss avoidance through fraud 
awareness training, policy review and advice. 

 

15. Background Papers 
 
15.1 Various previous Audit Committee reports 
 
 
Contact Officer: Head of Internal Audit, Assurance and Anti-Fraud 
Email:   robwinter@barnsley.gov.uk 
Date:

Page 61

mailto:robwinter@barnsley.gov.uk


  
Internal Audit Services Corporate Anti-Fraud Team 

Annual Fraud Report 2020/21 
 

Appendix 1 

 
Summary of Reactive Work 

Fraud 
Type 

b/f 
from 
19/20 

Referrals 
Received 

Referrals 
Total 

Referrals 
Accepted 

Referrals 
Rejected 

Investigations 
Closed 

c/f to 
21/22 

Frauds 
No. 

Prosecutions 
No. 

Other Action Value Notional 

Blue 
Badge 

7 3 10 10 0 9 1 1 1  2 warning letters 
issues; 

 5 intended 
prosecutions were 
withdrawn due to 
increased pressure 
on Court hearings 
as a result of the 
Covid-19 pandemic.  

£934 
(incl. 
costs) 

 

Council 
Tax 

0 20 20 13 7 10 3 0 0 Liability in respect of 
one account was 
amended resulting in a 
increase of CT income 
being raised 

£1,564.13  

Council 
Tax SPD 

7 125 132 20 112 19 1 0 0 19 discounts were 
cancelled resulting in 
an increase in CT 
income being raised 
across the identified 
accounts  

£9,077.49 £2,115.49 

CTRS 4 58 62 30 32 27 3 0 0 1 claim was amended 
resulting in an 
increase to the CT 
account 

£1,256.78  

Housing 
Benefit 

1 1 2 1 1 0 1 0 0    

NDR 1 3 4 0 4 0 0 0 0  

 

  

P
age 62



  
Internal Audit Services Corporate Anti-Fraud Team 

Annual Fraud Report 2020/21 
 

Appendix 1 

 

Fraud 
Type 

b/f 
from 
19/20 

Referrals 
Received 

Referrals 
Total 

Referrals 
Accepted 

Referrals 
Rejected 

Investigations 
Closed 

c/f to 
21/22 

Frauds 
No. 

Prosecutions 
No. 

Other Action Value Notional 

Right to 
Buy 

0 5 5 5 0 5 0 0 0    

Tenancy 2 29 31 21 10 11 10 0 0  The tenancies of 
two properties 
were terminated; 

 The tenancy 
succession of one 
property was 
prevented 

 £279,000 

 

Figures used for notional savings are:  
(i) Projected savings up to the end of the financial year 
(i) Council property recovered = £93,000 (figure recommended by Cabinet Office) 
NB: The above does not reflect the extent of recovery of any savings 

 

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Head of Internal Audit, 
Anti-Fraud and Assurance  

  
 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 2ND JUNE 2021  
  
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN UPDATE 
 
 
1. Purpose of the report 

 

1.1 To update the Audit and Governance Committee on progress with the 

completion of actions identified as part of the Annual Governance Review 

2019/20, and to confirm that any actions which remain outstanding will be 

included in the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 2020/21 

 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1 The Committee is asked to note the report and the proposals to carry 

forward any outstanding actions to the Annual Governance Statement 

Action Plan 2020/21. 

 

3. Background  

 

3.1 The Annual Governance Review process for 2019/20 comprised a facilitated 

self-assessment with each Business Unit. The key outcomes from these 

assessments identified strengths, areas for enhancement and areas for 

improvement. These latter areas were included in a governance action plan 

(Appendix 1) which formed part of the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

3.2 Progress against the action plan has been regularly considered by the Audit 

and Governance Committee with the last report being presented in March 2021. 

The majority of actions have been completed. 

 

3.3   Outstanding actions will be included in the Annual Governance Statement 

2020/21 Action Plan if they haven’t been subsequently completed by the time 

the plan is issued (Appendix 2). 

 

 

 

 

     Contact Officer: Corporate Governance and Assurance Manager 

Email:                Alisonsalt@barnsley.gov.uk 

Date:                 18 May 2021 

Page 65

Item 8

mailto:Alisonsalt@barnsley.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

Barnsley MBC – Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 - Action Plan  

 

Governance Area  Issue Identified Actions Timescales  Responsible Officer Current Status 

Risk Management  Fundamental review of the approach to 
risk management and governance 
assurance 

    

 Strategic risk register review New approach designed and then 
agreed by SMT 

October 2019 Rob Winter/Alison 
Salt 

Completed 

 Workshop session held with SMT to 
identify new strategic risks 

August 2020 Rob Winter/Alison 
Salt 

Completed 

 New SRR populated onto new RM 
system 

31/10/20 Alison Salt Completed 

 Establish SMT review and monitoring 
schedule 

31/10/20 Alison Salt Completed - To be 
routine part of SMT 
quarterly review of 
performance 

 Revised RM Policy and Procedures Prepare revised RM Policy and 
Procedures to support the new 
approach 

31/03/20 Rob Winter/Alison 
Salt 

Policy Statement 
and Approach 
developed for A&G 
comment 

 Approval through Audit and Governance 
Committee and Cabinet 

30/04/21 Rob Winter/Alison 
Salt 

Approved at AGC – 
17/03/21 
To Cabinet – 
02/06/21 

 Training and Support Development of training material for 
inclusion on the POD system 

30/04/21 Rob Winter/Alison 
Salt 

Training materials 
to be developed 
with IT colleagues 

 Roll-out of new approach for 
Operational and Project risk 
management 

Communication and training plan for 
HoS supported by guidance and POD 
training 

31/03/21 Rob Winter/Alison 
Salt 

Live roll out of 
system – 07/05/21 
POD training to be 
developed 2021 

 Re-introduction of a specific fraud risk 
assessment process as part of the new 
approach 
 

Design and roll-out of fraud risk 
assessment tool for use by HoS / SDs 

31/03/21 Joanne Race Completed - Fraud 
risk assessments 
undertaken with all 
BU’s 
 

P
age 67



Governance Area  Issue Identified Actions Timescales  Responsible Officer Current Status 

Information 
Governance 

 Security Breaches and Losses - Most 
Business Units had had some security 
breaches which had been dealt with 
using the procedures. A number 
reported losses of equipment. There 
may be a need to reassess training and 
supervision in teams in relation to 
security breaches and consider if any 
were repeat offences. 

    

 Phishing awareness 
 
Phishing tests were recognised as useful 
and there may be a requirement for 
further staff training. 

Phishing exercise completed end of 
August 2020. 
   
Training – currently being rolled out to 
staff who failed the recent phishing 
exercise (August 2020).   
 
 
 
 
Further roll-out of the training to all 
staff.  
 
 
 
Next phishing exercises planned:  
November 2020 and December 2020 
To complete phishing exercises every 3 
months following the above 
 
Devising phishing dashboard along with 
BI.  This will identify trends etc in BU’s 
so that action can be taken 

 
 
 
Roll-out w/c 
5th October to 
be completed 
by 13th 
November 
2020 
 
Mid 
November to 
end December 
2020 
 
November, 
December 
2020 
3-monthly  
 
December 
2020 

 
 
 
Simon Marshall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Simon Marshall 
 
 
 
 
Simon Marshall 
 
 
 
 
Simon Marshall / BI 
Team 

 
 
 
Training completed, 
this was made 
available to all staff 
 
 
 
 
Rolled out via Keep 
Barnsley Moving 
staff newsletter 
 
 
Rolled out March 
2021 
 
 
 
Planned - work 

continuing 

 

 Training and awareness 
 
Most Business Units had had some 
security breaches which had been dealt 
with using the procedures. A number 

Training plan for coming year – the 
training suite contains a variety of 
courses, micro modules, guides, articles 
and other resources to roll out to 
employees. This is supported by 

Commenced 
September 
2020.  Plan 
extended until 

Simon Marshall 
 
 
 
 

In progress - 
planned end date 
December 2021 
 
 

P
age 68



Governance Area  Issue Identified Actions Timescales  Responsible Officer Current Status 

reported losses of equipment. There 
may be a need to reassess training and 
supervision in teams in relation to 
security breaches and consider if any 
were repeat offences 
 
Need to reinforce/review information 
security training for staff 

targeted communications – reminders – 
relevant topics pertinent at the time 
(e.g. following an incident or an area of 
weakness identified) – via corporate 
communications, IG intranet.  Also 
supported by IG ‘attendance’ at 
Directorate meetings and events e.g. 
extended DMT’s on a regular basis and 
drop-in sessions (when possible) 
 
Directorates to reinforce IG/IS training 
and awareness – incorporate specifically 
into PDR’s, supervisions and team 
meetings.   
 
The tools available are very limited – 
e.g. POD and major resources required 
from IG/IS.  To explore more robust 
technical methods of rolling out training 
e.g. Metacompliance / POD 
replacement / Success Factors 
 

December 
2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April – June 
2021 
 
 
 
August 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
February 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Simon Marshall 
 
 
 
 
Simon Marshall 
(Metacompliance) 
 
 
 
 
Workforce 
Development Team 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Progressing 

 
 
 
 
Metacompliance 
Contract cancelled 
as product not fit 
for agile / 
homeworking 
 
Timeline for 
Success Factors 
Phase 2 (learning 
and development) 
has now slipped 
date revised to Feb 
2022. 
 

 Monitoring of incidents data 
 
There may be a need to reassess 
training and supervision in teams in 
relation to security breaches and also 
consider if any were repeat offences. 

Power BI data is ‘live’ data on IG and IS 
incidents.  SD’s and HoS need to take 
ownership and regularly monitor the 
data so that they are aware of incidents 
in their Directorate, repeat offenders 
etc.   
 

December 
2020 to 
January 2021 

 Simon Marshall On track – 
dashboards created 
to be completed by 
end February 2021 
 
 
 

P
age 69



Governance Area  Issue Identified Actions Timescales  Responsible Officer Current Status 

IG to plan awareness session across all 
BU’s DMT’s to raise awareness of Power 
BI and to identify any support needed 
 

IG meetings 
planned 
throughout March 
2021 to raise 
awareness via 
DMT’s 

 Home working Home working – data security – training 
rolled out by IG (as at 2nd October 2020 
approximately 240 staff not completed 
the training).  
 
SD’s to reinforce that the training is 
mandatory and ensure all staff have 
completed. 
 

October 2020 
 
 
 
 
October 2020 

Diane Arkwright 
/Simon Marshall 
 
 
 
Service Directors 

Completed 
 
 
 
 
Completed 

 Account deletion 
 
The deletion of accounts or system 
changes these are not always actioned 
in a timely manner. 
 

Managers have responsibility to let 
service desk know in a timely manner, 
regular reports are run, and SD receive 
report and they then close down the 
accounts.   
 

September 
2020 

HoS update sent out 
last 29/09/20 to 
remind of process 
and responsibility 
within Policy. 

Completed 

 Single sign-on 
 
Lack of single access passwords – 
barriers and frustrations in place for 
people to be able to do their jobs. 
Variety of different HR systems 

Reviewed at every procurement of IT 
systems.  Not always possible.   
 
IT is working towards single sign-on for 
all systems.  However reliant on 
suppliers. 

Ongoing – this 
will be 
reviewed as 
part of all new 
IT 
procurements 

Sara Hydon, Head of 
IT (Service 
Management) 

In progress 

 Use of memory sticks - There is the 
occasion whereby the use of memory 
sticks has been authorised on an 
individual basis, the users with access to 
use USB memory sticks is documented 
but not the physical memory sticks 

IS currently reviewing options – e.g. 
blocking all USB drives for memory 
sticks or enforcing encryption on 
memory sticks. 

On hold due 
to Covid-19 as 
would cause 
disruption 

Sara Hydon, Head of 
IT (Service 
Management) 

On hold due to 
Covid-19 as would 
cause disruption 

 Brexit –  
• General need to ascertain which 
countries providers/suppliers to the 
Council may store data in  

The EU Transitions Group are 
continually reviewing Brexit guidance 
and are holding regular meetings. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 70



Governance Area  Issue Identified Actions Timescales  Responsible Officer Current Status 

• General concern that further 
understanding is required regarding 
Data Handling/ Sharing / Transferring.   
 
Thoughts on the areas for 
consideration/improvement drawn out 
from the review process and thoughts 
on how action plans can be 
programmed to take forward work to 
improve governance in these areas 
going forwards 

Specifically, IG will carry out the 
following: 
 
The IG team to contact every 
Directorate SD to ascertain if there are 
any data flows outside of the UK in 
preparation for the Brexit decisions.  
Once Brexit decisions are made the IG 
will work alongside services identified to 
ensure robust agreements (in whatever 
form UK / other countries agree) are in 
place to ensure safe 
sharing/transferring. 
 
The IS team have identified systems 
which are ‘hosted’ outside of the UK.   
 
Follow up exercise with system 
suppliers to ascertain current position.  
Once clear IS Team will work with 
services to ensure continued access to 
data. 

 
 
 
October 2020 
to November 
2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2020 
to November 
2020 
December 
2020 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Simon Marshall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Simon Marshall 
 
 
Simon Marshall 

 
 
 
On track 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Completed 
 
 
Completed 
 
 
 

FOI / SAR 
Compliance 

 Fundamental review of the process to 
deal with Customer Complaints, FOI, 
SAR and EIR requests to improve 
timeliness 

    

 Delay in responding to LGSCO enquiries  Comprehensive review LGSCO 
Annual Letter  

 Deep dive six case failings 

 Identification of service delays / 
failings 

25/09/20 Kate Liddall Completed 

 Delay in dealing with customer 
complaint 

 Comprehensive review complaint 
process / procedure 

23/10/20 Kate Liddall Completed 

 Ineffective CFIIT management tracking 
system 

 Implementation new performance 
management system 

30/10/20 Kate Liddall 
CFIIT 
IT 
Rob Winter 

Completed 

P
age 71



Governance Area  Issue Identified Actions Timescales  Responsible Officer Current Status 

 Migration old system into 

SharePoint Online 

 User Acceptance Testing   

 Implementation of system 
improvements 

 Development Power BI Performance 
Dashboards 

Stuart Taylor 

 Services failing to meet to 
statutory/corporate timescales 

 Strengthened communication  

 Impress consequences  

 Regular attendance at DMT’s 

 Performance discussed at SMT 

 Comms & Engagement Plan   

In progress Kate Liddall In progress – 
regular meetings 
scheduled  

Personal 
Development 
Reviews 

 Further review of the PDR process, 
system and guidance to ensure 
improved compliance and quality of 
PDRs. 

    

  Technical difficulties were 
identified e.g. staff completing 
reviews using one network and 
then having to upload 
documentation onto another 
system. 

 The details of staff requiring a PDR 
are often incorrect when supplied 
to Heads of Service – data quality 
issues – information taken from 
POD and not always accurate – 
wrong coding issues 

 Systems and processes are not 
helpful – one team tried to start 
their PDR review process in March 
– the system doesn’t allow this 

 Concerns going forwards about 
undertaking PDR’s when staff are 
now predominantly home based – 
lack opportunity for face to face 

Inaccuracy of reports relating to PDR 
completions – often a misunderstanding 
of managers and employees about the 
need to complete all stages of the 
process for it to be recorded in the 
system as completed.  Amend the PDR 
PowerBI report to show the stage each 
PDR is at if not completed 
 
Develop guidance on 121 / supervisions 
to promote ongoing performance 
conversations and move away from the 
concept of ‘once a year’ performance 
discussions.  Include advice about 
undertaking 121 discussions virtually or, 
in exceptional circumstances, face to 
face but adhering to social distancing 
measures and the latest Government 
and Council guidance.  We will also 

August 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 
2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kay Welbourne 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kay Welbourne 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Completed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Completed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 72



Governance Area  Issue Identified Actions Timescales  Responsible Officer Current Status 

discussion – need to consider how 
to undertake these in the “new 
normal” 

 System should follow a structure 
timetable/calendar flow – e.g. 
February budget setting, March 
business planning, April PDR’s 

 The review has identified that a 
further review of the PDR process 
should be undertaken. 

 

include this information in the revised 
PDR guidance. 
 
Undertake a full review and rebrand of 
the performance appraisal process 
aligned to the new council plan / MTFS / 
Smart Working 
 
 
Introduce an agreed timescale for the 
completion of PDRs linked to the 
business planning cycle 
 
Implement Performance and Goals 
module within Success Factors which 
should address some of the technical / 
reporting issues being experienced with 
the Learning Pool solution 

 
 
February 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
February 2022 
 
 
 
February 2022 

 
 
Amanda Glew / Kay 
Welbourne 
 
 
 
 
Amanda Glew / Kay 
Welbourne 
 
 
Amanda Glew / Kay 
Welbourne 
 

 
 
Success Factors 
(performance and 
goals) now due to 
be implemented 
Feb 2022 
 
As above 
 
 
 
As above 
 
 

Performance 
Management and 
Data Quality 

 Further develop KPI’s and service 
standards in some BU’s 

    

 
 
 

Continue to develop service standards 
and KPI’s with Business Units and 
ensure increased use of Power BI 
tools/reports as a routine part of 
business management 
 

March 2021 Malachi Rangecroft Ongoing 

Declarations of 
Interest 

 Improve compliance with completion 
of annual forms and their subsequent 
availability and use 

    

 
 
 
 

Review of the process to ensure full 
compliance with the completion of the 
Declaration of Interests form and their 
subsequent availability and use 

March 2021 Martin 
McCarthy/Rob 
Winter 

To be incorporated 
as an Internal Audit 
to be scoped. 

Managing Staff 
Absences 

 Compliance with the Council’s 
Managing and Supporting Attendance 
at Work Policy 

    

P
age 73



Governance Area  Issue Identified Actions Timescales  Responsible Officer Current Status 

 The absence management system 
doesn’t help managers to proactively 
manage absences –the trigger form 
does not link with information on Fiori. 
 

Comprehensive employee absence 
dashboard developed on Power BI 
launched to all managers on 1st August 
2020 and includes: 
 
A replacement real time 'absence 
trigger' process to enable more timely 
absence discussions to take place. 
 
Breakdown of sickness absence 
measures to directorate and business 
unit level. 
 
New visuals for analysing absence 
patterns, by time, type, directorate and 
business unit. 
 
A manager-level view of all recorded 
absence in the team, including sickness, 
leave and other absence types. 
 
Post roll out review to be undertaken 
December 2020 to review effectiveness 

December 
2020 

Janine 
Hollingsworth 

Automation of 
update for KPI’s tab 
in final stages of 
testing. Scheduled 
for completion and 
launch 31/3/21. 
 
Further post rollout 
review to be 
undertaken 12 
months after 
launch August 
2021. 

 Training and skills development may be 
required for managers to ensure they 
follow the process. 

 
Room for BU to ensure consistency of 
approach in this area – ensuring 
competency and skills of managers are 
in place to manage attendance at work 

 
 

 

As part of the development of the 
absence dashboard we have undertaken 
a number of training sessions for 
managers in how to use the dashboard 
along with a refresher on the councils 
managing attendance policy.  266 
managers attended this training up to 
the point we went into lockdown.   
 
114 managers have not been on the 
training so training session has been 
recorded and is available on POD so that 
these managers can trained and this will 
also be available as a refresher for 

December 
2020 

Janine 
Hollingsworth 

Completed 

P
age 74



Governance Area  Issue Identified Actions Timescales  Responsible Officer Current Status 

managers who have already been on 
the training and any new managers who 
start with us moving forward. 
 
Post roll out review to be undertaken 
December 2020 to review effectiveness 
 
 

 Inconsistency in approaches adopted by 
Heads of Service. Check whether 
compliance maintained 
 

HRBP’s receive absence trigger emails 
which are then recorded on to the ER 
Tracker.  HRBP’s to follow up with 
services to ensure compliance with 
policy 
 

Ongoing HRBP’s Completed 

Safeguarding 
Awareness 
 
 
 

 Need to reinforce who the 
Safeguarding Champions are (where 
appropriate) in other BUs (not 
Children’s or Adults) 

    

 Review the need for Safeguarding 
Champions within Business Units and 
general refresher awareness of 
safeguarding: 

 Appointment of Principal Social 
Worker 

 Review of Safeguarding Champions 
across BMBC by Principal Social 
Worker 

 
 
 
 
March 2021 
 
June 2021 

 
 
 
 
Julie Chapman 

IPSW recruited and 
commences 5 July 
2021. This role will 
oversee 
safeguarding 
learnings and 
actions are 
embedded within 
practice. 
 

Partnership, 
Relationship and 
Collaboration 
Governance 
 
 

 Need to develop a defined governance 
framework and improve reporting 
arrangements 

    

 Review the governance arrangements 
and reporting requirements for 
partnerships and collaborations and 
develop a defined governance 
framework with a corporate lead for 
partnerships and collaborations. 

March 2021 Martin McCarthy Review being 
scoped to 
commence in May. 

P
age 75



Governance Area  Issue Identified Actions Timescales  Responsible Officer Current Status 

Equalities and 
Inclusion 

 Review of profile and understanding of 
the Equalities and Inclusion agenda  

    

 Some Business Units felt that the 
importance of the Equalities and 
Inclusion agenda had diminished in 
recent years. Reference was made to 
the emerging Black Lives Matter (BLM) 
movement and the need for BMBC to be 
cognisant of this, comments on this 
aspect of governance were: 

 Feels like the importance of this 
aspect of governance has been 
eroded. 

 Possibility to benchmark BMBC with 
other LA’s on this? 

 Corporately BMBC had a recent 
Equalities/Diversity Peer Review – 
this reflected very positively on the 
Council 

 Ongoing problem with demographic 
data for Equality Impact 
Assessments 

 Relook at training plans in relation to 
BLM – been conversations in teams 
on this issue – need to offer more 
training to social workers and 
managers over next 12 month. This 
may be something that corporately 
BMBC should address. 

 

Revised equality and inclusion 
statement developed and loaded onto 
council internet site 
 
Develop Religious Observance guidance 
to raise awareness of the different 
religious or cultural beliefs and ensure 
individuals can fulfil these wherever 
possible 
 
Promote the availability of the courses 
‘The Uncomfortable Conversation’ 
relating to Black Lives Matter as part of 
Black History Month in staff bulletins 
and on social media 
 
Source Unconscious Bias training and 
include within the council’s E&I training 
offer 
 
 
 
Launch the training completions 
PowerBI dashboard which will show 
equality and inclusion training 
completed within business units and 
directorates with a view to increasing 
take up of these 
 
Undertake research with other Local 
Authorities on E&I governance and 
benchmark where possible 
 

September 
2020 
 
 
October 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
November 
2020 
 
 
 
 
November 
2020 
 
 
 
 
 
December 
20201 
 
 
 

Helen Derbyshire 
 
 
 
Zahid Qureshie 
 
 
 
 
 
Kay Welbourne 
 
 
 
 
 
Amanda Glew 
 
 
 
 
 
Kay Welbourne 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Helen Derbyshire 
 
 
 
 

Completed 
 
 
 
Completed  
 
 
 
 
 
Completed 
 
 
 
 
 
Completed – UB 
POD Course – 
communication 
campaign see 
below 
 
Completed – 
dashboard being 
raised with 
directorate to 
increase 
completions 
 
In progress – delay 
due to long term 
staff absence 
 
 

P
age 76



Governance Area  Issue Identified Actions Timescales  Responsible Officer Current Status 

Develop a communication campaign 
relating to equality and inclusion to 
promote all the activities listed above 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implementation of Success Factors 
solution will help to improve the 
demographic data we hold relating to 
employees 
 
 
 
 
 
Develop an equality and inclusion action 
plan (action included in the Organisation 
Development Strategy) 
 

December 
2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nov/Dec 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 2021 
 

Amanda Glew / Kay 
Welbourne 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Helen Derbyshire 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Helen Derbyshire 

In progress – due 
for release 
Feb/March 2021 
once details 
finalised. Renew 
Translation and 
Interpretation 
Supplier - finalised 
 
In progress Success 
Factors delayed 
until end of year. 
No interim solution 
available for data 
collection. 
 
 
In progress – will 
support new 
People Strategy 
 
 

Monitoring Officer 
role awareness 
 
 
 

 Ensure awareness of role of Monitoring 
Officer given staff changes 

    

 Ensure the awareness of the role of the 
Monitoring Officer following recent staff 
changes – communication to all staff 
across BMBC 

October 2020 Martin McCarthy Completed 

 

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Barnsley Council – Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 – Outstanding Actions           Appendix 2 
 

Action Deadline  

AGS Action Plan 2019/20 – Further review of the PDR process, system and guidance to 
ensure improved compliance and quality of PDR’s. Most actions completed – outstanding 
actions:  
 Success Factors (performance and goals) to be implemented   

  
  
 Feb 2022  
 

 
AGS Action Plan 2019/20 – Compliance with the Council’s Managing and Supporting 
Attendance at Work Policy – most actions completed - completion and launch of automated 
process due 31/3/2021:  

 Review to be undertaken 12 months after launch August 2021  

  
  
  
August 2021 

AGS Action Plan 2019/20 – Improve compliance with completion of annual 
forms (Declaration of Interests) and their subsequent availability and use:  
 To be incorporated and scoped into an Internal Audit review  

  
 
2021 

 
AGS Action Plan 2019/20 – Review of profile and understanding of the Equalities and 
Inclusion agenda – most actions completed – outstanding actions:  

 Undertake research with other LA’s – in progress but delayed due to long term staff 
absence  

 Implementation of Success Factors delayed   

  
  
 2021 

 
End 2021  
 

 
AGS Action Plan 2019/20 – Further develop KPI’s and service standards in some BU’s:  
 Work continuing  

  
Part of continuous 
process of development 
of KPI’s and service 
standards across Council 
 
 

AGS Action Plan 2019/20 – Security breaches and losses – most BU’s had had some security 
breaches which had been dealt with using the procedures. A number reported losses of 
equipment. There may be a need to reassess training and supervision in teams in relation to 
security breaches and consider if any were repeat offences. Most actions completed – 
outstanding actions:  
 Developing a phishing dashboard with BI – planned work continuing  

 Training plan for 2021 – progressing – commenced September 2020   

 POD Success Factors – learning and development  

 Review of options of memory sticks  

  
  
  
  
 
Throughout 2021 
Dec 2021  
Feb 2022  
On hold due to Covid 19  
  

AGS Action Plan 2019/20 – Fundamental review of the approach to risk management and 
governance assurance – most actions completed – outstanding action:  
 Development of training material for inclusion on the POD system  

  
 
Throughout 2021 
 
  

AGS Action Plan 2019/20 – Need to develop a defined governance framework and improve 
reporting arrangements – outstanding action: 

 Review the governance arrangements and reporting requirements for partnerships and 
collaborations and develop a defined governance framework with a corporate lead for 
partnerships and collaborations 
 
 

 

 
Baseline review Q1/Q2 
Framework end 2021 

Page 79



Barnsley Council – Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 – Outstanding Actions           Appendix 2 
 

AGS Action Plan 2019/20 – Need to reinforce who the Safeguarding Champions are (where 
appropriate) in other BU’s (not Children’s or Adults):  

 All planned actions awaiting appointment of Principal Social Worker who will review this 
as a priority when in post July 2021  

  
  
  
July 2021 onwards  

 

  
 

Page 80



Report of the Head of Internal Audit, 
Anti-Fraud and Assurance  

  
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 2ND JUNE 2021  
  
ANNUAL RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
 
1. Purpose of the report 

 

1.1 This report provides the Audit and Governance Committee with a summary of 

the risk management activity over the last 12 months to contribute to the 

assurances the Committee requires as part of the annual governance 

statement process. The report also takes a forward look at the work planned for 

the current financial year.  

 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1 The Committee is asked to consider the report as a contribution to the 

Committee’s assurances regarding the Council’s governance 

arrangements as part of the 2020/21 Annual Governance Statement 

process. 

 

3. Background – A Change in Approach  

 

3.1 As the Committee is aware, following a Corporate Peer Challenge of Barnsley 

Council in 2019 recommendations were made that the corporate risk register 

should be reviewed to ensure that the risks within it truly reflected the key issues 

relating to the Council’s business and future developments.  

 

3.2 This presented an opportunity to consider the Council’s approach to strategic 

risk management. Although delayed somewhat by the impact of the Covid-19 

pandemic, a revised approach to risk management was developed, and through 

extensive consultation with the Senior Management Team and other senior 

managers, has now been implemented. 

 

4. Annual Governance Review – 2019/20 

 

4.1 Whilst work was being undertaken in developing the new approach, it was 

important to ensure that risks were still being identified and managed. The 

Annual Governance Review process for 2019/20 included facilitated self-

assessment questionnaires across all areas of governance, the process 

identified that risk management was an area requiring further improvement and 

was included as a key action for the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan. 

 

4.2 It was clear however that although Business Units continued to have regard to 

their risks as part of their everyday operational management the active use of 

formally completed risk registers had in some cases receded or ceased to be 

completed. 

Page 81

Item 9



 

4.3 Formal Risk Registers were however continuing to be used for major Council 

Projects, Glassworks and some Boards e.g. Information Governance Board 

and Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board. 

 

4.4 The impact of Covid-19 and the need to manage services in new ways to cope 

with the implications of the pandemic also threw a bright spotlight on the need 

for efficient and effective risk management. Adopting a model for major 

incidents through a threat and risk approach proved highly successful in the 

management of the pandemic. Significant assurance can therefore be provided 

on the continued appreciation and management of risk across the Council, 

albeit, but by necessity, outside of the normal process. 

 

4.5 The Annual Governance Review however confirmed that that the proposed 

changes to the risk management approach and system were needed. 

 

4.6 Although clearly not a normal year, the response to the pandemic, the annual 

governance review process in July 2020, the maintenance of key project-type 

risk registers and the engagement in the development of the new approach 

provides good assurance that the Council remains risk aware and committed to 

ensuring risk management is at the heart of decision-making. 

 

5. Development of the New Risk Management System and 2021/22 

 

5.1 As the Committee is aware, a Business Case to develop a supporting IT system 

to enable risk reporting and review to be undertaken was approved in June 

2020. Work commenced in summer 2020 with IT and Business Intelligence 

colleagues to develop a risk reporting system which would utilise existing 

systems SharePoint and Power BI. This had the benefit of no financial outlay to 

establish the system (other than staff time) and used familiar systems to the 

Council which would be beneficial to the roll out and use of the new system. 

 

5.2 The new approach focuses on an assessment of confidence, encouraging risk 

managers to focus on matters requiring attention, assurance and intervention 

and to consider what actions are required and by when to mitigate the risk. 

 

5.3 The thought process is focussed on assessing: 

 

 Are we satisfied that we are doing everything reasonable to influence and 

manage uncertainties? 

 What do we need to have in place to ensure we do all the right things in 

the right way? 

 And if not, to identify actions or the assurances needed. 

  

5.4 The system development was trialled over a 6-month period working on the 

Strategic Risk Register with SMT, Business Unit Risk Registers with BU6 and 

BU8, and the Risk Register for the Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board. 

Page 82



Additional risk registers were subsequently added to the system including the 

Information Governance Board, and BU12. 

 

5.5 Supporting guidance materials were developed and a Risk Management Policy 

Statement and Framework document was produced – both of which are 

available to users of the system via links on both the SharePoint and Power BI 

sites. The Committee approved the Policy Statement and Framework which are 

shortly to be considered by Cabinet on 2nd June.  

 

5.6 The new system went “live” on 7th May 2021, and work is underway to continue 

to meet with BU’s to showcase the system and offer support to colleagues to 

begin the process of developing/updating their risk registers. Currently, there 

are 159 risks on the system of which 13 risks relate to the Strategic Risk 

Register. The expectation is that all BU’s will have populated the system with 

their new/revised risks by the end of June 2021. 

 

5.7 The new Strategic Risk Register is also being considered by Cabinet on 2nd 

June and to re-start the process of bi-annual reviews of strategic risks at 

Cabinet. 

 

5.8 The Strategic Risk Register will be formally reviewed by the Audit and 

Governance Committee on a quarterly basis. A programme of more detailed 

analysis/presentation of specific strategic risks will be provided by the 

attendance of an Executive Director or Service Director at the Audit and 

Governance Committee to provide in depth explanation around the risk(s) and 

how they are being managed. This will commence in June 2021. 

 

5.9 There will be a full evaluation of how the new system is working in the Autumn 

incorporating an initial questionnaire/survey to Business Units to obtain views 

and shape any additional changes that may be required. A formal evaluation of 

the system will be undertaken with IT and Business Intelligence colleagues later 

in the year / early 2022. 

 

5.10 There has been excellent engagement from senior management across the 

Council, welcoming the new approach and recognising it as a more helpful 

management and assurance tool. Whilst there is more work to do over the next 

few months to fully embed the approach in all parts of the Council, the 

Committee should be further assured of the risk culture that clearly exists 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Corporate Governance and Assurance Manager 

Email:                Alisonsalt@barnsley.gov.uk 

Date:                 18 May 2021 

 

Page 83

mailto:Alisonsalt@barnsley.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council

P
age 85

Item
 10



Commercial in confidence

P
age 86



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 87



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 88



Commercial in confidence

P
age 89



Commercial in confidence

P
age 90



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 91



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•
.

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 92



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

More 
meaningful 
and timely 
reporting

Maximising 
the value 

from 
auditor’s 

work

More 
freedom to 
reflect local 

context

VFM arrangements commentary and recommendations

P
age 93



Commercial in confidence

P
age 94



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 95



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 96



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 97



Commercial in confidence

P
age 98



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 99



Commercial in confidence

P
age 100



Commercial in confidence

P
age 101



P
age 102



 

 

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report of the Service Director – Business Improvement, Human Resources and Communications 

Sickness Absence – 2020/21 

 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1.  To advise of BMBCs position in relation to sickness absence for the financial year 2020/21.  
 

1.2. The report also provides a comparison and summary for the financial year 2019/20 
 

1.3. To provide assurance to the committee of the mitigating actions and improvements that are in place 
or are being developed to reduce sickness absence levels and to support the health and wellbeing of 
our employees. 

 

2. Background  
 

2.1. The Councils performance target for 2020/21 was 6 days per employees per year. 
 

3. Overall Position for 2020/21 
 

3.1. The following tables provide data for the financial year 2019/20 and 2020/21 
 
2019/20 
 

Directorate DAYS  
LOST Q1  

DAYS  
LOST Q2  

DAYS  
LOST Q3 

DAYS  
LOST Q4  

TOTALS FOR 
2019/20  

Adults & Communities  2.31 1.86 2.44 2.57 9.18 

People 1.88 2.20 2.60 1.91 8.59 

Place 1.66 1.89 2.09 1.83 7.47 

Public Health 2.62 3.08 2.45 2.5 10.65 

Core * 1.17 0.90 2.19 1.06 5.32 

Total days lost per employee 1.85 1.84 2.25 2.04** 7.98 

*Business Improvement, HR & Communications, Corporate Health & Safety and Emergency Resilience, Finance, Legal Services & Elections, 

Governance, Members Services & Business Support, (Customer Information & Digital Services from Jan 20) 
** Q4 figure doesn’t include sickness due to COVID-19, revised total figure including COVID absence is 2.24.  
 

2020/21 
                                                                                                                
The following provides an update in relation to the days lost per employee for the year:   

Directorate DAYS  
LOST Q1  

DAYS  
LOST Q2  

DAYS  
LOST Q3 

DAYS  
LOST Q4  

TOTALS FOR 
2020/21  

Adults & Communities  2.24 2.17 2.54 2.02 8.97 

Children’s** 1.98 1.78 1.81 2.84 8.41 

Place 2.01 2.01 2.33 2.60 8.95 

Public Health 1.81 1.29 2.29 3.42 8.81 

Core * 1.20 1.08 1.12 1.42 4.82 

Total days lost per employee 1.82 1.71 1.94 2.30 7.77 
 

* Customer Information & Digital Services, Finance including Catering, Business Improvement, HR & Communications, Corporate Health & 

Safety and Emergency Resilience, Legal Services & Elections, Governance, Members Services & Business Support,  
** Children’s was renamed from People 1-4-2021 

 

Page 103

Item 11



 

 

 

3.2. The absence levels identified above show total days lost per employee of 7.77 days for 2020/21 this is 
a decrease in the overall days lost for 2019/20 (7.98).  

 

 
 

 
3.3. The CIPD Health and Wellbeing at Work Report 2021 reports the latest figures from the Office for 

National Statistics (ONS) have shown COVID-19 accounted for 14% of all sickness absence since April 
2020. While the pandemic may have led to additional sickness absence, measures such as furloughing, 
social distancing, shielding and increased homeworking appear to have helped reduce other causes of 
absence, allowing the general downward trend to continue. 
 

3.4. CIPD also reports that the disruption caused by the pandemic to businesses in terms of working time 
has been incalculable in many ways. The impact, coupled with differences between organisations in 
which aspects of COVID-19-related absence, if any, they include in their absence rate (such as 
suspected or confirmed cases, self-isolation, quarantine, shielding), mean they were unable to provide 
a valid average sickness absence rate in the 2021 Health and Wellbeing at Work survey report. The 
benchmark absence rate for Public Sector therefore remains as reported by CIPD in 2019/21 at 8 days 
which we are slightly below.  

 
3.5. Across the region most Councils have also reported a reduction in absence for 2020/21. These are 

shown below.  
 

 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Actual Days Lost per FTE

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Page 104



 

 

 
Days lost Yorkshire & Humber for 2020/21 

 
3.6. The Councils current absence level for 2020/21 is 7.77 days lost per FTE. The Councils performance 

indicator target is currently 6 days per employee however this is under review. 
 

3.7. Across the Council the total number of days lost in 2020/21 was 23,964 costing £2,361,141, a 
reduction from 2019/20 (25,119 actual days lost).  

 
3.8. The main reason for absence during 2020/21 was due to mental health including stress, anxiety and 

depression with 9,278 actual days lost, at a cost of £931,659.  An increase from 7233.5 days lost in 
2019/20.  

 
3.9. Other key absence reasons include infectious disease which has risen from previous years due to 

COVID 19.  2,408 days at a cost of £246,926 and musculoskeletal including back pain and injuries 
4,406.5 days lost at a cost of £395,818 however a reduction from 19/20 4,880 days lost). 

 
3.10. Days lost within the Council from minor ailments including cough, cold and influenza, headache, gastro 

has seen a dramatic reduction to 1,784 at a cost of £187,198 from 5,231 days lost in 2019/20. This is 
likely to be due to a number of factors including the majority of employees working from home, 
children having periods of home schooling during lockdown, and the extra cleaning regimes put in 
place to reduce the spread of Covid.  

 
4. Managing Sickness Absence.  

 
4.1.      The Absence Reporting Dashboard was launched on the 1 August 2020 which includes: 

 Breakdown of sickness absence measures to directorate and business unit level. 
 New visuals for analysing absence patterns, by time, type, directorate and business unit. 
 A manager-level view of all recorded absence in the team, including sickness, leave and other 

absence types. 
 Individual employee absence summaries. 
 A new 'absence trigger' process to replace the current ‘monthly trigger report’ which auto 

generates email notifications to managers when an absence trigger occurs to enable more timely 
absence discussions to take place 
 

4.2.       Employees who hit a trigger are also entered onto the case management tracker and discussions held  
        at Directorate Management Teams with the HR Business Partners.  
  

4.3.       Managers can access training for the dashboard via POD the Council’s learning platform.  
 

5.  Wellbeing Initiatives  

5.1. The South Yorkshire BeWell@work Award gives a framework for a business to work towards and build 
good practice in workplace health and wellbeing.  There are 3 levels of award, Bronze, Silver and Gold. 
We have provided evidence to show what support we have in place in relation to Wellbeing for 
employees across the Council. There are 4 compulsory elements to the award: - Human Resources, 
Health & Safety, Absence Management & Health Campaigns of which we have achieved Gold standard 
in all categories. In addition, there are 9 optional core themes which we have provided evidence for 
and met 5 at Gold level :- Consultation & Communication, Training and Development, Drugs and 
Alcohol, Smoking and supporting an Aging workforce and have met the remaining 5 core themes at 
Silver level :- Mental Health, Physical Activity, Healthy Eating, Health Campaigns and Long Term Health 
Conditions / MSK. Therefore, overall we have been awarded the Silver level of accreditation. 

 
 
 

Page 105



 

 

5.2. Following the initial Health & Wellbeing Survey, carried out across the Council, which closed on 6 
March 2020 further pulse surveys were undertaken, due to COVID 19, in May 2020 and October 2020. 
The results of these surveys in relation to Mental Health were as follows: -  
 

 In October overall wellbeing remains similar to that reported in May, with 78% of employees stating 
that they are in good/very good health 

 27% of employees report feeling more anxious, a reduction of 13% compared to the May survey. 

 17% of employees report feeling more depressed compared to 19% in the May survey 
 

5.3. As a result of the surveys a Mental Health Support Programme was developed which includes: - 

 Purchase of an Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) from Health Assured which includes a 24/7 
helpline, App /portal with a plethora of wellbeing information, mini health checks, weekly plans and 
an online chat facility.  

 Mental Health Training for both employees and Managers through Mental Health England 

 Training employees to take on the role of Mental Health First Aider (45 in total) including a train the 
trainer model for sustainability.  

 
5.4. The EAP was launched to all employees (including school-based employees) on 27 November 2020. Up 

to and including 31 March 2021, 214 users have registered for the App and Health Assured have 
received 11 calls. 78% of users have been female and 21% male. The age group who have accessed the 
App the most has been between 40-49-year-old (38%), 50-59-year olds (29%), 30-39 year old, (25%) 
and 10% between 21-29 year olds, therefore appealing to all age groups. 

    
5.5. Workplace counselling is also available which can be accessed by employees through the Occupational 

Health Unit. Counselling support was accessed by 226 employees during 20/21 (Excluding Schools) an 
increase from 207 in 2019/20. 

 
5.6. Additional Mental Health Awareness training provided by Mental Health England was made available 

to all employees between January 2021 and March 2021. In total 613 employees booked onto this 
training, 19% of the workforce. 

 
5.7. The Managers training will be available for Managers to complete until 8 December 2021. As at 31 

March 2021, 56% of Managers have completed module 1 and 10% had completed the whole course. 
 

5.8. The following E-learning mental health courses have continued to be available on POD during 
2020/21: - Suicide Prevention, Mental Health awareness, Emotional Intelligence, Email Stress and 
Personal Resilience. A new e-learning course was also made available for Managers, Managing Mental 
Health and Wellbeing in the Workplace from September 2020. In total 694 employees completed 
these courses in 2020/21. There was a rise in completions of all of these courses in April and May 
2020. 

 
5.9. A remote workers toolkit was developed on POD for staff and managers who are remote working. 

 
5.10. A one to one checklist has been developed for Managers which encourages managers to discuss 

wellbeing and workloads along with employee’s case work in their 1-2-1 / supervision meetings.  
 

5.11. Exercise classes for Pilates, Zumba have continued to be held via Zoom due to Covid restrictions rather 
than on site (Gateway, Westgate, Town Hall). 

 
5.12. Self-help information was included in the daily then weekly Keeping Barnsley Moving bulletin for staff 

and was also made available via the Well@Work website. 
 

5.13. Due to COVID restrictions we have not been able to carry out any Know your numbers Assessment 
across the Council this year. 

Page 106



 

 

6. Moving forward  
 

6.1. The absence dashboard is continuing to be developed and will provide: -  
 A breakdown of sickness absence measures to directorate and business unit level. 
 New visuals for analysing absence patterns, by time, type, directorate and business unit. 
 A manager-level view of all recorded absence in the team, including sickness, leave and other 

absence types. 
 Individual employee absence summaries. 

 
6.2. The Wellbeing Stakeholder Group will continue to identify and implement actions that support 

employee health and wellbeing which include: 
  

 Developing a Health and Wellbeing Plan as part of the new People and OD Strategy 

 Develop a Mental Health Policy  

 Encourage discussions around Mental Health to reduce the stigma 

 Encouraging employees to remain active 

 Working to change workplace culture by addressing use of emails and meetings 

 Support employees with caring responsibilities.  

 Work with the EAP provider to support employees Mental Health. 

 Work towards the Gold standard of the BeWell@work award 

 Continue to monitor employee mental health and wellbeing via surveys, focus groups 
etc 

 
6.3.      We value our employees and want to show that we are committed to supporting them to lead 

healthy and fulfilling lives both inside and outside of work  
 

Report Author: Janet Glover 
 
Date: May 2021 

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



A & G Committee - Property 

P
age 109

Item
 12



Key Areas

• Asset Valuation – RICS Valuation – Global Standards 2017 (Red Book 
Global Standards) and the RICS Valuation – Global Standards 2017- UK 
National Supplement

• Disposal – Best Consideration Section 123 of the Local Government Act 
1972

• Acquisitions – (as above)

• Asset Transactions – Lease Renewals/RR/Leases etc

Property & Asset Management Governance Group (PAGG) 01 April 2021

P
age 110



PAGG - Purpose of Group

To provide clear and 
unambiguous governance 

arrangements and appropriate 
controls to facilitate all land 

and property decisions.

P
age 111



The Group Structure

PAGG

Head of 
Property

Strategic 
Finance 
Manager

Assets

P
age 112



What's in

• Rent Reviews, Lease and Licence Renewals

• Community Asset Transfers

• Decisions to hold over

• Concessions

• Surrenders Disposals

• Strategic Approach to negotiations

• Funding Bids

• Lease determination and forfeiture

• FM – Moves in/out

• FM – works to buildings

P
age 113



Any Questions?P
age 114



 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME        2021/2022 Municipal Year  
 
 

 Mtg. No. 1 2 3 Dev. Mtg. 4 5 6 7 1 

Committee Work Area 
Contact / 

Author 
02.06.21 

26.07.21 
or  

28.07.21 

15.09.21 
or  

27.09.21 
13.10.21  17.11.21 19.01.22 16.03.22 13.04.22 01.06.22 

Committee Arrangements           

Committee Work Programme AS X X X  X X X X X 

Minutes/Actions Arising WW X X X  X X X X X 

Review of Terms of Reference  AS    X      

Self-Assessment Review AS    X      

Internal Control and Governance Environment           

Local Code of Corporate Governance MMc/AS      X    

Annual Governance Review Process AS      X    

Annual Governance Statement (Draft/Final) AS  X(D) X(F)       

AGS Action Plan Update  AS X  X  X  X  X 

Anti-Fraud           

Annual Fraud Report RW X         

Corporate Anti-Fraud Strategy RW       X   

Corporate Fraud Team - Report RW   X    X   

Corporate Risk Management           

Risk Management Policy & Strategy AS        X  

Annual Risk Management Report AS X        X 

Strategic Risk Register AS X X X  X X X X X 

Internal Audit           

Internal Audit Charter (Annual) RW X        X 

Internal Audit Consultation / Plan RW X     X  X X 

Internal Audit Quarterly Report  RW  X   X  X   

Internal Audit Annual Report (Interim / Final) RW X (I) X (F)       X 

P
age 115

Item
 13



 

 

 Mtg. No. 1 2 3 Dev. Mtg. 4 5 6 7 1 

Committee Work Area 
Contact / 

Author 
02.06.21 

26.07.21 
or  

28.07.21 

15.09.21 
or  

27.09.21 
13.10.21  17.11.21 19.01.22 16.03.22 13.04.22 01.06.22 

External Audit (Grant Thornton)           

Annual Governance Report (ISA260 Report) GT     X     

Audit Plan GT  X     X   

Annual Audit Letter GT     X     

Annual Fees Letter  GT       X   

External Audit Progress Report GT X X X  X X X X X 

Financial Reporting and Accounts           

Financial Regulations – Update NC/SLo  X        

MTFS NC/SLo       X   

Statement of Accounts (Draft / Final) NC  X(D) X(F)       

Corporate Finance and Performance 
Management & Capital Programme Update  

NC  
 X 

 
X  X  

 

Treasury Management Annual Report  NC          

Treasury Management Progress Report NC          

Treasury Management Policy & Strategy 
Statement  

NC  
  

 
    

 

Other Corporate Functions contributing to 
overall assurance programme to be determined: 

  
  

 
    

 

Update on Glassworks MG  X X  X  X  X 

Update on Covid-19 Response  SLa  X   X  X   

Information Governance and Cyber Security 
update (twice yearly) 

SJH X 
  

 
X    

 

DPO Update (twice yearly) RW X    X     

Human Resources (annual) MP/JH X         

Health & Safety Resilience (Annual***) MP/SD      X    

Confidential Reporting (Whistleblowing) Annual 
Report 

Sla/RW  
  

 
  X  

 

P
age 116



 

 

 Mtg. No. 1 2 3 Dev. Mtg. 4 5 6 7 1 

Committee Work Area 
Contact / 

Author 
02.06.21 

26.07.21 
or  

28.07.21 

15.09.21 
or  

27.09.21 
13.10.21  17.11.21 19.01.22 16.03.22 13.04.22 01.06.22 

Business Continuity/Emergency Resilience 
(Annual) 

MP/SD  
  

 
    

 

Procurement (Annual) NC/CA          

Performance Management (Annual) MP/MR      X    

Asset Management (Annual) DS X         

Ethical Framework (Annual) SLa/RW          

Equality and Inclusion (Annual) MP/HD      X    

Partnerships (Annual) MMc          

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
Annual Letter 

MP/KL  
 X 

 
    

 

 

Strategic Risk Presentations 

 

Risk 
SMT 
Lead 

02.06.21 
26.07.21 

/ 
28.07.21 

15.09.21 
/  

27.09.21 

13.10.21 
(Dev. 
Mtg.) 

17.11.21 19.01.22 16.03.22 13.04.22 01.06.22 

Community Cohesion WL X         

Safeguarding Children MJ-R  X        

SEND MJ-R  X        

Glassworks MG   X       

Serious Economic Downturn in Local Economy MG   X       

Partnership and Collaboration Governance SLa   X       

Educational Outcomes Progress MJ-R     X     

Health Protection (CV19) JB     X     

Organisational Resilience SLa     X     

Financial Sustainability NC      X    

Safeguarding Adults WL      X    

External Market in Adult Social Care Provision WL      X    

Consistency of Decision Making SLa       X   

P
age 117



 

 

 

Training / Awareness Sessions 

 

Subject / Theme 
Contact / 

Author 
02.06.21 

26.07.21 
/ 

28.07.21 

15.09.21 
/  

27.09.21 

13.10.21 
(Dev. 
Mtg.) 

17.11.21 19.01.22 16.03.22 13.04.22 01.06.22 

Lessons from Public Interest Reports (Croydon & 

Nottingham) 
GT / NC X         

Treasury Management Presentation IR/NC  X        

Glassworks 
MG/KMc   X       

Commercial Strategy           

Council Plan           

Role of the Monitoring Officer           

SCRMCA    X       

 

Training and awareness sessions to be confirmed as the year progresses. 

P
age 118



Document is Restricted

Page 119

Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 133

Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4. Data Protection and information Governance Compliance - Presentation
	5. Internal Audit Interim Annual Report 2020-21
	6. Internal Audit Charter 2021-24
	7. Corporate Anit-Fraud Team Annual Report - 2020/21
	8. Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Update
	AGS 2019 2020 Action Plan Appendix 1
	AGS Action Plan 2019-20 Outstanding Actions Appendix 2

	9. Annual Risk Management Report
	10. External Audit - Progress Report and Sector Update
	11. Sickness Absence Annual Report 2021/21
	12. Property and Assets Governance  Annual Report - Presentation
	13. Audit Committee Work Plan
	15. Internal Audit Plan 2021/22
	16. Corporate Anti-Fraud Plan 2021/22

